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Report of the Audit Committee
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020

The Board Audit Committee (“BAC" or the "Committee’} is constituted as a statutory committee in terms of the
Companies Act No 71, 2008 ("Act"), and has an independent role with accountability to both the board and to
shareholders of Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited ("MSSA” or the "Company”). The BAC operates under
an approved charter, assigned by the MSSA board of directors (the "Board"), setting out the duties and
responsibilities.

Composition of the Committee

The Committee currently comprises of three independent non executive directors who are all suitably skilled, with
all three members having relevant financial experience. The Committee is elected by the shareholders at the
Company's annual general meeting ("AGM").

King IV recommends that the chairman of the Board should not be a member of a Company's audit committee.
The chairman of the Board, Peter Gordon (the "Chairman”), currently serves on the Company's Committee due to
the small size of the Board. The Board has considered the issue and believes that the Chairman’s skills, knowledge
and experience allow him to make a significant contribution to the Committee and to equip the Committee to
perform its functions and the Board has therefore recommended that he continues to serve on the Committee.

Fees paid to the BAC members are disclosed in the notes to the Company’s financial statements.

Internal audit

The Company's internal audit function is provided by an independent team within the Macquarie Group Limited's
("MGL") Risk Management Group ("RMG"). The internal audit team has provided feedback to the Committee and
has direct access to the Committee. The Committee is satisfied that the Company's internal audit function is
independent and has the necessary resources and authority to enable it to discharge its duties.

Internal control

Systems of internal control are designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against misstatement or loss,

While the Board is responsible for the internal control systems and for reviewing their effectiveness, responsibility
for their implementation and maintenance rests with executive management. The systems of intemnal control are
based on Macquarie Group structures, together with written policies and procedures, These provide for
segregation of duties, clearly defined lines of authority and accountability.

The Committee has assessed the effectiveness of the internal control system based on information and
explanations given by management, work done by the internal audit division and discussions with the external
auditor on the results of the audit, Through this process no material matter has come to the attention of the
Committee that caused its members to believe that the Group's system of internal controls and risk management
is not effective and would not result in the preparation of reliable financial statements,
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Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

Report of the Audit Committee
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020

External audit

The Committee has evaluated the independence and expertise of PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc (‘PwC") as the
external auditor, and nominates them as external auditors for the ensuing year. In arriving at this decision, the
Committee was cognisant that PwC has been previously appointed as an auditor of the Company and noting any
consultancy work or advisory work PwC may have performed for the Company, and has approved the terms of
engagement and fees paid to PwC.

The external auditor has unrestricted access to the Group's records and management. PwC presents a report to
the Committee on significant findings arising from the annual audit and is able to raise any areas of concern directly
with the Committee. The Committee is satisfied that the external auditor is independent of the Company.

Non audit services

Non audit services provided by the external auditor may only be undertaken on approval by the Committee. These
services should exclude any work which may be subject to external audit and could compromise the auditor's
independence. All non audit services undertaken during the year were approved in accordance with this policy,

Activities of the Board Audit Committee

The Committee met four times during the financial year. Minutes of the meetings of the Committee are presented at
each Board meeting together with an update from the chairman of the Committee. Matters requiting action or
improvement are identified and appropriate recommendations are made to the Board.,

Emphasis of significant matters

The Committee has reviewed the Company's financial position and ability to continue as a going concern. As at
31st March 2020, the Company has an excess of total liabilities over total assets of R104.2m., On 11 June 2020,
the Company had issued 1,315,789,474 class C no par value ordinary shares at a price of R19 cents each to its
parent Macquarie EMG Holdings Pty Limited. The issuance of shares has resulted in positive net asset position
subsequent to balance sheet date.

During the year, due to business restructuring the Company had scaled down its trading operations in South Africa
and transferred certain contracts and related positions to its related entity Macquarie Bank Limited London Branch.
In March 2020, majority of the trades were unwound with the exception of primarily the OTC derivatives, interest
rate swaps, Debt Medium Term Note Programme (DMTN). The Company intends to de-list its Debt Instrument
Programme registered with the Johannesburg Securities Exchange (JSE) and accordingly in April 2020, external
notes under DMTN programme were also redeemed. The open OTC derivative positions will expire in February
2023 and as part of the business strategy, the management has intention to novate these positions. Subject to
regulatory approvals, the Company will surrender its JSE licences and will continue its operations as Private
Limited Company.

Discussions with management includes the liquidity analysis and support from the Macquarie Group through equity
injections and subordinated loans. The Committee is satisfied that the Company can continue to operate for at
least the next 12 months.

Approval of the Annual Financial Statements

The Committes has reviewed the Company's annual financial statements and considered the Company's
accounting practices and internal financial control to be appropriate. The Committee has recommended approval
of the annual financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020 to the Board.

[

Timothy Leerag F
Chairperson: rd Audit Committee
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Macdﬁérié Securities South Africa Limited

Report of Corporate Governance
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020

Macquarle Securities South Africa Limited (“MSSA", the “Company") is a derivatives and securities dealer based in
Cape Town. The Company is indirectly owned by Macquarie Group Limited (‘MGL"), a global financial services
provider listed on the Australian Securities Exchange (“ASX"). As an ASX listed Company, MGL is required to
report on the extent to which it has followed the governance recommendations of the ASX Corporate Governance
Council.

During the 2014 financial year, MSSA converted from private to a public Company under the South African
Companies Act, 2008 (the “Act") on account of the fact that it issues freely transferable listed debt securities under
its R10,000,000,000 Debt Instrument Programme registered with the Johannesburg Securities Exchange (*JSE").

The oversight and governance of MSSA is performed by the board of directors (the “Board") and its committees.
The Board is comprised of two executive directors, Graham Crawford and Nikolai Mavrodinov and three non
executive directors, Duncan MacRobett, Peter Gordon and Tim Leclercq. Peter Gordon is chairman of the Board
of Directors.

The Board has also formed a Board Audit Committee (“BAC”). All members of the BAC are independent non
executive directors of MSSA, who also sit on the Board of MSSA. Tim Leclercq is chairman of the BAC.

As an indirect subsidiary of MGL, the Company operates within the Macquarie Group's risk management
framework, Under this framework, the risks which the Company is exposed to are managed on a globally
consolidated basis for MGL as a whcle, including all subsidiaries, in all locations. To facilitate this, Risk
Management Group (‘RMG") authority is required for all material risk acceptance decisions. RMG is independent
of all other areas of the Macquarie Group and reports directly to the Managing Director and the Board of MGL.
Management are comfortable that this internal approach to risk ensures that risks in subsidiaries are subject to the
same rigour and risk acceptance decisions as the parent Company.

In the context of the Company’s ownership structure and its operation within MGL's risk management framework,
the Board believes it is appropriate to look to MGL's Corporate Governance Summary and MGL's Environmental,
Social and Governance Report as evidence of the Company’s application of good governance within the
Macquarie group. These reports are available on Macquarie's website.

Certificate by Company Secretary

In accordance with the provisions of section 88(2)(e) of the South African Companies Act 71 of 2008 (the act), |
certify that for the year ended 31 March 2020 the Company has lodged with the registrar of companies all such
returns as are required of a Company in terms of the act, and that all such returns are true, correct and up to
date.

Graham Crawford
Company Secretary

Date 25 June 2020




Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

Directors’ Report
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited (“the Company”), the
Directors submit herewith the financial statements of the Company and report as follows:

Directors

The following persons were the Directors of the Company at any time during or since the end of the financial year
to the date of this report:

Name of Director Appointed on
Duncan MacRobert (Non Executive) 28 March 2014
Graham Crawford 10 November 2009
Nikolai Mavrodinov 29 September 2015
Peter Gordon (Non Executive) 28 March 2014
Timothy Leclercq (Non Executive) 28 March 2014

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Company during the financial year ended 31 March 2020 were the participant in
institutional (hedging, proprietary trading) markets, in a number of Equity Derivatives including Options, Futures and
underlying stocks. It operates in South Africa with staff based in South Africa.

Results

The Financial Report for the current and previous financial years, and the results herein, have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and comply with the Companies Act No. 71 of
2008,

The (loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity holder for the current financial year was (R286.7m) (2019: R99.4m).

State of affairs

During the year, due to business restructuring the Company had scaled down its trading operations in South Africa
and transferred certain positions to its related entity Macquarie Bank Limited London Branch, which led to
significant decrease in the Company's trading activities.

There were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company that cccurred during the financial
year under review not otherwise disclosed in this report.

Review of operations
The loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company for the current financial year was R286.7m, as
compared to R99.4m profit in the previous financial year.

The primary reason for the loss in current financial year is the increase in net interest expense by R357m.

Net trading income for the current financial year was R168.5m, a increase of 120 percent from R76.6m in the
previous financial year.

Net operating expense for the current financial year was (R122m), as compared to an income of R157.6m in the
previous financial year.

Total operating expenses for the current financial year were R89.8m, an increase of 17 percent from R85.3m in the
previous financial year,
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Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

Directors’ Report
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Going concern

The directors have reviewed the financial statements and concluded that the Company has adequate financial
resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future. In addition, the directors have satisfied themselves
that the Company is in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its
foreseeable cash requirements, including access to short term borrowing facilities from group companies.
Accordingly the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. Refer to Events after reporting
period below.

Adverse changes and compliance

The directors are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the Company. The directors
are also not aware of any material non compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending
changes to legislation which may affect the Company.

Events after the reporting period

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, on 11 June 2020, the Company issued 1,315,789,474 class C no par
value ordinary shares at a price of R19 cents each to its parent Macquarie EMG Holdings Pty Limited. This resulted
in positive net asset position subsequent to balance sheet date. In addition, for Covid-19 consideration refer note 2
Coronavirus (COVID-19) impact.

Independent auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. continued in office as auditors for the Company for 2020,

At the AGM, the shareholder wil be requested to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. as the independent
external auditors of the Company and to confirm Dilshad Khalfey as the designated lead audit partner for the 2021
financial year.

Secretary
The Company secretary is Graham Crawford .

Postal address: PO Box 50525
Waterfront
Cape Town 8002

Business address: Level 2, Great Westerford
240 Main Road
Rondebosch
Cape Town 7700

The financial statements set out on pages 14 to 52, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the board on 25 June 2020, and were signed on its behalf by:

o

Nikolai Mavrodinov Graham Crawford
Director Director

Cape Town
25 June 2020
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Macquéfie Securities South Africa Limited

Directors' Responsibilities and Approval
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020

The directors are required in terms of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 to maintain adequate accounting records and
are responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial information included in
this report, It is their responsibility to ensure that the financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the
Company as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then
ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act,
71 of 2008. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008 and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently
applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established
by the Company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the
directors to meet these responsibilities, the board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of
error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a
clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an
acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the Company and all employees are required to
maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the Company's business is conducted in a manner that in all
reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the Company is on identifying,
assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the Company. While operating risk cannot be
fully eliminated, the Company endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls,
systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system
of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of
the financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The directors have reviewed the Company’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2021 and, in light of this
review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the Company has or had access to adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future,

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the Company's financial
statements. The financial statements have been examined by the Company's external auditors and their report is
presented on pages 9 to 13,

The financial statements set out on pages 14 to 52, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were

approved by the board on 25 June 2020 and were signed on their behalf by:

Nikolai Mavrodinov Graham Crawford

Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited 2020 Annual Report 8




-

pwc

Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholders of Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited (the Company) as at 31 March 2020, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

What we have audited
Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited’s financial statements set out on pages 14 to 52 comprise:
@ the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020;

e the income statement for the year then ended;

e the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
e the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

@ the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.
Basis for .;‘gr;';j{]- 311

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the sections 290 and 291 of the Independent
Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised
January 2018), parts 1 and 3 of the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional
Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised November 2018) (together the IRBA Codes) and other
independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in South Africa.
We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities, as applicable, in accordance with the IRBA Codes
and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa.
The IRBA Codes are consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants and the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) respectively.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 5 Silo Square, V&A Waterfront, Cape Town, 8001, P O Box 2799, Cape Town, 8000
T: +27 (0) 21 529 2000, F: +27 (0) 21 814 2000, www.pwe.co.za

Chief Executive Officer: L S Machaba
The Firm's principal place of business is at 4 Lisbon Lane, Waterfall City, Jukskei View, where a list of the partners® names is available for inspaction.
VAT reg.no. 4070182128
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Our audit approach

Overview

|

l Materiality ‘ e Overall materiality: R 6,925,000, which represents 5% of |
‘ | average profit before income tax for the past 3 years. '
T { i
’ Key audit matter | e Valuation of derivative assets as at 31 March 2020. |'

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the financial statements. In particular, we considered where the directors made
subjective judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved
making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our
audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including among other
matters, consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud.

We tailored the scope of our audit in order to perform sufficient work to enable us to provide an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Company, the
accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Company operates.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. An audit is designed to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the financial statements.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality,
as set out in the table below. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine
the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the

effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole.

Overall materality R 6,925,000.

How we determined it | 5% of average profit before income tax for the past 3 years.

Rationale for the We chose average profit before income tax for the past 3 years as the
materiality benchmark because, in our view, it is the benchmark against which the
benchmark applied performance of the Company can be consistently measured by users
when profits are volatile year-on-year, and is a generally accepted
benchmark. We chose 5% which is consistent with quantitative
materiality thresholds used for profit-oriented companies in this sector.

10
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.'*\'I'!U audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

derivative assets as at 31 March

Valuation of

2020

The Company’s derivative assets amount to a
significant portion of the total assets of the
Company as at 31 March 2020.

These derivative assets include exchange traded
equity future derivatives of R59.2 million and
Over-the-Counter (OTC) derivatives of R1,687.5
million, and are measured at fair value.

Management makes use of entity-developed
internal models to determine the fair value of
these derivative assets, To the extent possible,
these models use only observable market data,
however management has to make assumptions
for certain inputs that are not supported by
prices from observable current market
transactions in the same instrument, such as
volatility and correlation.

We considered the valuation of derivative assets
to be a matter of most significance to the current
year audit due to the significant management
judgement and high estimation uncertainty
involved in the valuation of these instruments.

Refer to the following notes to the financial
statements:

e Note 2 ix): Summary of significant
accounting policies - Derivative
instruments;

e Note 27: Derivative financial
instruments;

e Note 28.1: Financial risk management -
Credit risk; and

e Note 29: Fair values of financial assets
and financial liabilities.

Other information

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Our procedures included the following:

We obtained an understanding of the design and
implementation of internal controls relevant to
the valuation of the Company’s derivative assets.
We tested key controls relating to the valuation
of these instruments, including controls over:

- approval and validation of the models
adopted;

- accuracy of data inputs to models; and

- governance and review.

We made use of our valuation expertise to
perform the following procedures:

- We obtained the contracts which related
to the instruments from management
and agreed all the inputs used by
management at deal level to the
contracts. No material differences were
noted;

- We independently sourced the relevant
market data from third party external
data providers and compared this to
data used by management in their
calculation. Based on our work
performed, we accepted the data used by
management;

- Based on generally accepted
methodology, we developed a bespoke
model that captures all of the intricacies
of all the contracts. We independently
calculated the value of all the
instruments and compared it to
management's valuations.
Management’s fair values fell within our
ranges of independently determined
values.

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the document titled “Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited Annual

Report for the financial year ended 31 March 2020”, which includes the Directors’ Report, the Report
of the Audit Committee and the Certificate by Company Secretary as required by the Companies Act of

11




=

pwec

South Africa. The other information does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsioilities of the directors for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies
Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

® FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are

12
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inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

@ FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015,
we report that PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. has been the auditor of Macquarie Securities South Africa
Limited for 13 years.

F’\QNOWW Tac .

PricewaterhouseCoope
Director: D Khalfey
Registered Auditor
Cape Town

25 June 2020
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Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

Income statement

For the financial year ended 31 March 2020

Figures in Rand Notes 2020 " 2019
Interest and similar income 550,455,171 546,509,186
Interest and similar expense (831,792,947) (470,842,308)
Net interest (expense)/income 3 (281,337,776) 75,666,878
Fee and commission income - 9,002,812
Fee and commission expense (9,748,886) (8,516,588)
Net fee and commission (expense)/income 3 (9,748,886) 5,486,224
Net trading income 3 168,510,143 76,577,507
Other operating income and charges 3 562,817 (79,998)
Net operating (expense)/income (122,013,702) 157,650,611
Employment expenses 3 (14,414,921) {29,071,067)
Occupancy expenses 3 (6,774,989) (8,412,227)
Non-salary technology expenses 3 (3,122,451) (1,864,927)
Other operating expenses 3 (75,455,871) {45,958,179)
Total operating expenses (99,768,232) (85,306,400)
Operating (loss)/profit before income tax (221,781,934) 72,344,211
Income tax (expense)/benefit 4 (64,974,841) 27,094,826
(Loss)/profit after income tax (286,756,775) 99,439,037
(Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity holder of

Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited (286,756,775) 99,489,037

The above income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

"he March 2020 financial results reflect the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases (IFRS 16) on 1 April 2018. As permitted by IFRS 16, the
Company has not restated the comparative financial reporting period. Refer to note 2(i) for the impact on the initial adoption of IFRS 186,

Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited 2020 Annual Report
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Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

Statement of comprehensive income
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020

Figures in Rand 2020 2019
(Loss)/profit after income tax (286,756,775) 99,439,037
Other comprehensive income # "
Total comprehensive (loss)/income (286,756,775) 99,439,037
Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to ordinary equity holder of

(286,756,775) 99,439,037

Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

The above statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

Statement of financial position
As at 31 March 2020

2020 M

Figures in Rand Notes 2019
Assets

Cash and bank balances 5 6,929,774 5,179,549
Cash collateral on securities borrowed and reverse repurchase agreements 6 - 2,054,130,500
Trading assets 7 44,490,863 4,349,163,954
Derivative assets 27 1,746,772,059 2,282,797 591
Margin money and settlement assets 8 205,482,520 328,897,621
Financial Investments g 1,298,357,638 3,539,030,126
Loan assels 10 - 149,475,000
Other assets 1 5,867,613 67,160,863
Property, plant and equipment (b 2,412,080 7122114
Interests in associate 13 300 300
Deferred tax assets 14 3,728,007 67,760,073
Total assets 3,314,041,764 12,850,707 691
Liabilities

Cash collateral on securities lent and repurchase agresments 5] 58,000,026 6,430,807 498
Trading liabilities 15 1,039,750,361 2,045,877 464
Derivative liabilities 27 93,990,407 196,653,675
Margin money and settlement liabilities 16 108,500,021 340,010,203
Financial fiabilities at fair value through profit or loss 17 1,998,148,703 3,604,818,507
Other liabilities 18 119,348,046 49,367 931
Provisions 19 567,285 634,235
Total liabilities 3,418,304,849 12,667,969,513
Net (Habilities)/assets (104,263,085) 182,738,178
Equity

Share capital 20 290,327,100 280,327,100
Accumulated losses 21 (394,590,185) (107,588,922)
Total capital and accumulated losses attributable to ordinary equity holder of

Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited (104,263,085) 182,738,178
Total equity (104,263,085) 182,738,178

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

""Tha March 2020 financial results reflect the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases (IFRS 16) on 1 April 2019. As permitted by IFRS 16, the
Company has not restated the comparative financial reporting period, Refer to note 2(i) for the impact on the initial adoption of IFRS 16,
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Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

Statement of changes in equity
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020

Notes Share capital Accumulated Total
Figures in Rand losses equity
Balance as at 1 April 2018 290,327,100  (207,027,959) 83,299,141
Profit after income tax - 99,439,037 99,439,037
Other comprehensive income, net of tax = - :
Total comprehensive income, net of tax - 99,439,037 99,439,037
Balance as at 31 March 2019 290,327,100 (107,588,922) 182,738,178
Change on the initial application of IFRS 16 2(i) - (244,488) (244,488)
Restated balance as at 1 April 2019 290,327,100 (107,833,410) 182,493,650
Loss after income tax - (286,756,775) (286,756,775)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - + #
Total comprehensive income, net of tax - {286,756,775) (286,756,775)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 290,327,100 (394,590,185)  (104,263,085)

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

Statement of cash flows

For the financial year ended 31 March 2020

Figures in Rand Notes 2020 ¥ 2019
Cash flows generated from operating activities
(Loss)/profit before income tax (221,781,934) 72,344,211
Adjustments to profit after income tax:
Interest and similar income 3 (550,455,171) (546,509,186)
Interest and similar expense 3 831,792,947 470,842,308
Depreciation 3 7,018,029 5,422,351
Share based payment expense 3 27,639 188,560
Provision for long service and annual leave 3 100,296 268,029
Other operating income and charges (562,817) 79,998
Changes in working capital:
Cash collateral on securities (4,318,476,972)  4,887,541,703
Change in net trading portfolio 3,208,545,988 (2,922,872,415)
Change in net derivative financial instruments 433,361,364 (1,284,627,658)
Change in net margin money and settlement (108,095,081) 7,726,294
Change in financial Investments 2,240,672,488 (954,842,249)
Change in other assets and labilities 123,833,301 (28,216,618}
Change in loan assets 150,037,817 3,716,259
Change in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (1,606,669,804) 1,146,480,230
Change in provision for employment entitlements (66,950) (618,868}
Cash generated from operations 279,281,140 856,932,949
Interest and similar income recsived 567,775,758 535,134,206
Interest expense and similar charges paid (841,633,490) (460,363,570)
Interest expense paid on lease liabilities (242,240) :
Net cash from operating activities 5,181,168 931,703,585
Cash flows used in investing activities
Payments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment 12 (116,448) (23,243)
Proceeds from the disposal of property, plant and equipment 12 18,078 -
Net cash used in investing activities (98,370) (23,243)
Cash flows used in financing activities
Repayment of debt issued - (948,767 ,673)
Payments for principal component of lease liability®™ (3,332,573) -
Net cash used in financing activities (3,332,573) (948,767,673)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,750,225 (17,087,331)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 5,179,549 22,266,880
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 22 6,929,774 5,179,549

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

MRefer to note to 2 Changes in statement of cash flows and note 22 Notes o the staterment of cash flows for an explanation of the re-

presentation of certain comparative financial informat

ion.

¥The March 2020 financial results reflect the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases (IFRS 16) on 1 April 2019, As permitted by IFRS 16, the
Company has not restated the comparative financial reporting period. Refer to note 2(i) for the impact on the initial adoption of IFRS 16.

B R3.3m was the total cash outflow for leases during the current financial year,
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Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020

Note 1. Company information

The Company Is incorporated and dorniciled in South Africa. The address of the Company's registered office and principal place of business is
Level 2, Great Westerford, 240 Main Road, Rondebosch, Cape Town 7700,

The principal activities of the Company during the financial year ended 31 March 2020 were the participant in institutional (hedging, proprietary
trading) markets, in a number of Equity Derivatives including Options, Futures and underlying stocks. It operates in South Africa with staff based in
South Africa.

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies
) Basis of preparation

The Financial Report has been prepared in accordance with and containing information reguired by Intermnational Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS}, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides (as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee) and Financial Reporting Pronouncements (as
issued by the Financlal Reporting Standards Committes) and comply with the South African Companles Act No. 71 of 2008.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied
to all the financial years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Financial statements are presented in South African Rands.

Net asset deficiency and Going Concern

The financial statements for the current year have been prepared on a going concen basis, despite there being an excess of total liabilties over
total assets at 31 March 2020 of R104,283,085. On 11 June 2020, the Company issued 1,315,789,474 class C no par value ordinary shares at a
price of R19 cents each to its parent, Macquarie EMG Holdings Pty Limited. The subscription of shares by the Parent Company resulted in a
positive net asset position subsequent to the balance sheet date,

During the year, due to business restructuring, the Company had scaled down its trading operations in South Africa and transferred certain
contracts and related positions to its related entity Macquarie Bank Limited London Branch, In March 2020, the majority of the trades were
unwound with the exception of primarily the OTC derivatives, interest rate swaps and Debt Medium Term Note Programme (DMTN), The
Company intends to de-list its Debt Instrument Programme registered with the Johannesburg Securities Exchange (JSE) and accordingly in April
2020, external notes under the DMTN programme were also redeemed. The open OTC derivative positions will expire in February 2023 and as
part of the business strategy, the management has the intention to novate these positions. Subject to regulatory approvals, the Company wil
surrender its JSE licences and will continue its operations as a private company,

Based on the level of activities of the Company, it has adequate financial resources, including access to borrowing faciiities and additional equity
from Macquarie Group Companies, to continue its operations. Accordingly the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,

Basis of measurement
The financial report has been prepared under the historical cost convention except for financial assets and financial liabilities (ncluding derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

Changes in Entity's statement of cash flows

In order to more closely align with the Company's cash and liguid assets portfolio, the Company has reviewed the balances included in the
determination of cash and cash equivalents. The review concluded that for the year ended 31 March 2019 margin money balances held with
clearing houses have been excluded from cash and cash equivalent as these balances are held for trading purposes and are not available to mest
the Company's short-term cash commitrments, (Refer note 2(xviiiy Cash and Cash Equivalents).

As aresult of these changes, cash flow from operating activities and cash and cash equivalents decreased by R9.2m for the year ended 31 March
2018, This revision had no impact on the Company’s statements of financial position, income statements or reserves,

Critical accounting estimates and significant judgements
The preparation of this Financial Report in compliance with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates, It also reguires the
management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the accounting policies. The notes to the financial statements set out areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions are significant to the Company and the financial statements
such as:
~ determining the appropriate:business model for a group of financial assets and assessing whether the cash flows generated by a
Financial asset constitute solely payment of principal and interest (SPPI) (notes 2 (vi)):
» the choice of inputs, estimates and assumptions used in the measurement of Expected Credit Loss {ECL) including the determination
of significant increase In credit risk (SICR), forecast of economic conditions and the weightings assigned thereto (notes 2 (xil);
- fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (note 9, 10 and17);
= recoverability of tax recoverable, deferred tax assets and measurement of current and deferred tax liabilties can require significant
judgement, particularly where the recoverability of such tax balances relies on the estimation of future taxable profits and
management's determination of the likelihood that uncertain tax positions will be accepted by the relevant taxation authority (notes
2(v), 4 and 14).
Estimates arsd)judgemenia are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations
of future events.

Management believes that the estimates used in preparing the financial statements are reasonable, Actual results in the future may differ from
those reported and therefore it is reasonably possible, on the basis of existing knowledge, that outcomes within the next year that are different
from management’s assumptions and estimates could require an adjustment to the carrying amounts of the reported assels and liabilities in future
reporting periods,
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Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

i) Basis of preparation (continued)

Coronavirus (COVID-19) impact

Background

COVID-18, which is a respiratory ilness caused by a new virus, was declared a world-wide pandemic by the World Health Organisation in March
2020. COVID-18, as well as measures to slow the spread of the virus, have since had a significant impact on global economies and equity, debt
and commiodity markets. The Company has considered the impact of COVID-19 and ather market volatility in preparing its financial statements,

While the specific areas of judgement as noted on the previous page did not change, the impact of COVID-19 resulted in the application of further
judgament within those identified areas, Given the dynamic and evolving nature of COVID-19, imited recent experience of the economic and
financial impacts of such a pandemic, and the short duration between the declaration of the pandamic and the preparation of these financial
statemants, changes to the estimates and outcomes that have been applied in the measurement of the Company's assets and liabilities may arise
in the future, The impact of events that arise after the reporting period will be accounted for in future reporting periods.

Processes applied
As a consequence of COVID-19 and in preparing these financial statements, management:

- re-evaluated whather there were any additional areas of judgement or estimation uncertainty beyond whal has been disclosed above,

- updated its economic outlook - principally for the purposes of inputs into its ECL through the application of forward-looking
information, but also for input into the impairment analysis of financial and non-financial asset classes and disclosures such as fair value
disclosures of financlal assets and liabifities;

& conducted several internal processes to ensure consistency in the application of the expectsd impact of COVID-19 across all asset
classes;

- assessed the carrying values of its assets and liabilities and determined the impact thereon as a result of market inputs and variables
impacted by COVID-19; and

- considered the Impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statement disclosures,

Consideration of the statements of financial position and further disclosures
Key items In the statement of financial position and the related disclosures that have been impacted by COVID-19 were as follows:

Trading assets, trading labilities and financial investments
Given recent market volatility, the Company reviewed the appropriateness of the inputs to its valuations, which included the use of correlations,
price volatilities, funding costs and bid offer, counterparty and own credit spreads.

The impact of changes in valuation inputs as at the balance shest date has also been considered in terms of the classification of exposures in the
fair value hierarchy, transfers within the fair value hierarchy and the Level 3 sensitivity analysis.

The Company's financial investments include an unlisted equity investment which, in accordance with the Company's accounting policies, are
measured at FVTPL. The determination of the investments' carrying value included a consideration of the impact of COVID-19.

Derivative assets and liabilities

Given recent market volatility, the Company reviewed the appropriatensss of the inputs to its valuations as at the balance sheet date. These
included valuation adjustments (XVA) and notably the credit valuation adjustment (CVA), debit valuation acjustment (DVA} and funding valuation
adjustment (FVA). The impact of changes of inputs to the valuations has also been considered in terms of the classification of exposures in the fair
value hierarchy and transfers within the fair value hierarchy,

Other assets

In respanse to COVID-18 the Company undertock a review of wholesale portfolios and other financial asset exposures and the ECL for each, The
review considered the macroeconomic outlook, customer credit quality, the type of collateral held, exposure at default, and the effect of payment
deferral options as at the reporting date. The ECL methodology, SICR thresholds, and definition of default remained consistent with prior periods.
The impact of COVID-19 on the credit risk management disclosures, notably in relation to credit quality and collateral and other credit
enhancements was alse considered, Refer to note 28 - Financial risk management .

Property, plant and equipment
Given the impact of COVID-19, the Company's property, plant and equipment was subject to impairment testing which concluded that no material
impalment was required. Refer to note 12 - Proparty, plant and egquipment.

Risk management

A robust tisk management framework continues to be applied and the Risk Management Group (AMG) continues to monitor the impact of
COVID-19 on the Company's risk profile, Non-financial risks emerging from global movement restrictions, and remote working by our staff,
counterparties, clients and suppliers, are being identified, assessed, managed and governed through timely application of the Company’s risk
rmanagement framework.
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Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

i) Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) New Accounting Standards and amendments to Accounting Standards that are either effective in the current
financial year or have been early adopted
() IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 Leases replaces the IAS 17 Leases for the Company's financial reporting period commencing on 1 April 2019 subject o certain
exceptions, contracts that are leases within the scope of IFRS 16 from the lessee's perspective require the recognition of a 'right-of-use’ (ROU)
asset and a related lease liability, The classification of leases where the Company is lessor remains unchanged under IFRS 16,

Transition

The Company has applied IFRS 16 from 1 April 2019 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative information has
not been restated and continues to be reported undsr 1AS 17 and Interpretation for Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease, The
resultant reclassifications and adjustments arising upon transition to the new standard have been recognised in the opening balance shest on 1

April 2018,

For leases of office space, a transition adjustment was recognised as an adjustment to the Company's retained earnings as at 1 April 2019 for
leases where the Company measured the ROU as if IFRS 16 had always been applied. For other leases, the ROU assel was measured based on
the lease liability as at the transition date.

At transition, the Company recognised lease liabilities of R4.2m as a part of other liabliities and ROU assets of R2.2m as a part of property, plant
and equipment. After adjusting related amounts previously recorded on the statement of financial position, this resulted in a reduction to retained
earnings of R244k (post tax). As permifted by IFRS 18, the transition adjustment has been datermined by tha Company by electing practical
expedients to not recognise short-term or low value |eases on its staterment of financial position at the transition date. Judgement has been
applied by the Company in determining the transition adjustment which includes the determination of which contractual arrangements represent a
lease, the period over which the lease exists, the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee entities within the Macquarie Group, and the variability
of future cash flows.

The table below presents a reconciliation of the operating lease commitments as disclosed in the Company's 31 March 2018 financial statements.,
to the lease liabilities recognised on the transition date:

(Figures in Rand)

Particulars Amount
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 March 2018 4,470,885
(Less): Impact of discounting the future lease cash flows at the incremental borrowing

rate of each lease (weighted average rate of 8.53%) for iy
Lease liability recognised as at 1 April 2019 4,208,712

The key changes in the Company's significant accounting policies following the transition to IFRS 16 have been included within the relavant
sections of this note and other notes in this Financial Report, Accounting policies applicable to the prior period have been provided in italics as

appropriate for comparability purposes,

{ii) 1AS 19 - Employee Benefits

Amendments to 1AS 19 Employee Benefits specifies how an entity should account for defined benefit plans when a plan amendment, curtaiiment
or settlement occurs during a reporting period, The amendments require the use the assumptions used for the remeasurement of the net defined
benefit abiity or asset to determine the current service cost and the net interest for the remainder of the reporting period after a plan event
OCCUrs.

The amendment to 1AS 19 which was applied by the Company from 1 April 2012 did not have material Impact to the Company's financial
statements.
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Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
i) Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) New Accounting Standards and amendments to Accounting Standards that are not yet effective in the current
financial year

(i) IASB Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
The revised IASE is effective for the Company’s annual financial reporting period beginning on 1 April 2020,

The IASE Framework provides the IASE with a base of consistent concepts upon which future accounting standards will be developed, The 1ASE
Framework will also assist financial report preparers to develop accounting policies when there is no specific or similar standard that addresses an
issue,

The IASB Framework includes amendments to the definition and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities, income and expenses, guidance on
measurement and derecogrnition, and other relevant financial reporting concepts. The application of the IASB Framework from April 1 2020 is not
expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements. However, management's impact assessment of the IASB Framework
identified changes necessary to the Company's statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, as explained in note 2{).

ii}) Foreign currency translations

The functional currency of the Company is determined as the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. The
Company's financial statements are presented in South African Rand (the presentation cumency), which is also the Company's functional
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the Company's functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the transactions date.
Foreign exchange gain and loss resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabllities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the net trading income,

Translation differences on financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss in the
income statement,

iiii) Revenue and expense recognition

MNet Interest income and expense

Interest income and interest expense are recognised using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for financial assets, including finance lease
assets and financial liabilities camied at amortised cost. The EIR method calculates the amortised cost of a financial instrument at a rate that
discounts eslimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset or liabllity. Fees and transaction costs that are integral to the lending arrangement are recognised in the income statement over the
expected lifefor when appropriate, a shorter period) of the instrument in accordance with the EIR method.

When the estimates of payments or receipts of a financial instrument are subsequently revised, the carrying amount is adjusted to reflect the
actual or revised cash flows with the re-measurement recognised as part of interest income (financial assets) or interest expense (financial
liabifities).

Interest ineome on financial assets that are not credit-impaired is determined by applying the financial asset's EIR to the financial asset's gross
carrying amount, Interest income and expense on financial assets and liabiities that are classified as FVTPL is accounted for on a contractual rate
basis,

Met trading income

Net trading income comprises gains and losses related to trading assets, liabifities and derivative including &l realised and unrealised fair value
changes, dividends and foreign exchange differences.

Fair value gains and losses on valuation, initial costs on transaction date and gains and losses on disposal or redemption are recognised as trading
income.

Net trading income also includes fair value movemants on trading assets and liabilities, ineffective portion of designated hedge relationships and
fair value changes on derlvatives used to economically hedge the Company's interest rate risk where hedge accounting requirements are not met
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Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
iiil) Revenue and expense recognition (continued)

Dividends
Dividends are recognised in the income statement in net trading income when the entity's right to receive payment is established.

Other operating income and charges
Other operating income and charges include credit impairment charges on financial instruments, other impairment charges on equity interests in
associates and other income.

Impairment losses/reversal of impairment losses on these financial assets are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Fee and commission share from/shared with related entities
Fee shared with related entities is recognised as per the agreed fee sharing arrangement

Fee expense

Management fees and cost recoveries are charged to the Company In respect of services provided by other Macquarie Group entities as per the
agreed cost sharing arrangement. Such expenses are recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the standard recovery methodology
applied by the servicing entity.

Expenses
Expenses are recognised in the income statement as and when the provision of services is received.

iv) Taxation

Income Tax
The income tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that
it relates to iterns recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the financial position date. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts to be paid o the tax authorities,

The balance shest approach to tax effect accounting has been adopted whereby the income tax expense for the financial year is the tax payable
on the curent year's taxable income adjusted for changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets are recognised when temporary differences arise betwsen the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their respective camying
amounts which give rise to a future tax benefit, or when a benefit arises dus to unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised enly to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences or tax losses. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognised when such temporary differences give rise to taxable amounts that are being payable in future periods. Deferred tax assets and
liabllities are recognised at the tax rates expected to apply when the assets are recovered or the liabliities are settled under enacted or
substantively enacted tax law.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset cument tax assets and lhiabiiities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when there Is a legally enforceable right to
offset and an intention to either settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Company exercise judgement in determining whether deferred tax assets, particularly in relation to tax losses, are probable of recovery.
Factors considered mainly include whether future taxable profits are expected to be sufficlent to allow recovery of deferred tax assets.

The Company undertakes transactions in the ordinary course of business where the income tax treatment requires the exercise of judgement. The
Cornpany estimates its tax liability based on its understanding of the tax law.

Management applies a 5 year period to forecast revenue and expenses to estimate probable taxable income due to uncertainty of forecast
bayond 5 years,
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Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

v) Cash collateral on securities borrowed/lent and reverse repurchase/repurchase agreements

As part of its trading activities, the Company lends and borrows securities on a collateralised basis, The securities subject to the borrowing/lending
are not derecognised from the financial positions of the relevant parties, as the risks and rewards of ownership remain with the initial holder, Where
cash is provided as collateral, the cash paid to third parties on securities borrowed is recorded as a receivable, while cash received from third
parties on securities lent is recorded as a borrowing. These transactions include

-Reverse repurchase transactions, where the Company purchases underlying under an agreement to resell

-Repurchase transactions, where the Company sells underlying under an agreement to repurchase.

The Company continually reviews the fair values of the underlying on which the above transactions are based and, where appropriate, requests or
provides additional collateral to support the transactions, in accordance with the agreements.

The Company uses trade date acceunting when recording regular way purchases and sales of these assets and liabliities. At the date a purchase
transaction is entered into (trade date), the Company recognises the resulting financial asset or lizbility and any subsequent unrealised profit or
less arising from revaluing that contract to fair value is recognised in the income statement. Refer note 2{vi) for the detalled Financial Instruments
accounting policy,

vi) Financial instruments

(@) Recognition of financial instruments
Financial instruments are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrumant.

A financial instrument is initially recognised at fair value adjusted for transaction costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the
acquisition or Issuance of the financial instrument, and fees that are an integral part of he effeclive interest rate. Transaction costs and fees
earned relating to financial instruments carried at FVTPL are recorded in the income statement.

(b) De-recognition of financial instruments
Financial assets
Financial assets are de-recognised from the statement of financial position when:
—the rights to cash flows have expired and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred; and

- where the Company has transterred the financial asset such that it has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset.

A financial asset is transferred if, and only if, the Company i} transters the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, or i)
retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or
maore recipients in an arrangement where:

- the Company is not obligated to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it collects equivalent amounts from the original asset;
— the Company is prohibited from selling or pledging the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients, and
~ the Company is obligated to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without rmaterial delay.

In transactions where the Company neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a financial asset, the asset
is derecognised If control over the asset is lost. Any interest in the transferred and derecognised financial asset that is created or retained by the
Company is recognised as a separate asset or liability. In transfers where control over the asset is retained, the Company continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement as determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value of the transferred
asset.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabiities are de-recognised from the statement of financial position when the Company's obligation has been discharged, cancelled or
has expired,

Gains and losses on the derecognition of non-trading related financial assets and liabllities are recognised as other income or expense disclosed
as part of other operating income and charges in the income staternent.
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Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Modification of financial instruments

A financial instrument is modified when its original contractual cash flows are renegotiated or modified. A financial instrument that is renegotiated is
derecognised if the existing agreement is cancelled and a new agresment is made on substantially different terms or if the existing terms are
modified such that the renegotiated financial instrument is a substantially different financial instrument. Where the modification results in de-
recognition of the original financial instrument, the new financial instrument is recorded initially at its fair value and the resulting difference Is
recorded in other income. For financial instruments measured at amortised cost, and for debt financial assets measured at FVOCI when the
modification does not result in de-recognition, a gain or loss is recognised in other income reflecting the adjustment of the gross camrying amount
ta reflect the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows discounted at the original EIR.

(d) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified based on the business model within which the asset is held and on the basis of the financial asset’s contractual
cash flows characteristics

Business model assessment

The Company determines the business model at the level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed. In determining the business
model, all relevant evidence that is available at the date of the assessment is used including:

() how the performance of the financial assets held within that business model is evaluated and reported to the Company's Senlor Management
personnsl and senior executives;

{iiy the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and, in particular, the way
in which those risks are managed; and

{i) how managers of tha business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or
on the contractual cash flows collected).

The Company exercises judgement to determine the appropriate level at which to assess its business models and its intention with respect to its
financial assets.

Solely payment of principal and interest (SPF)

The contractual cash flows of a financial asset are assessed to determine whether these represent SPPI on the principal amount outstanding. This
includes an assessment of whether cash flows primarily reflect consideration for the time value of money and the credit risk of the principal
outstanding. Interest may also include consideration for other basic lending risks and costs.

Armortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method where:

{if the financial asset is held within a business model whose cbjective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and
(il the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that mest the SPPI requirements,

Interest income is determined in accordance with the EIR method

All financial assets held with Macquarie group entities are held within a business model whose objective is to hold financlal assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that meet the SPPI
requirements. Hence, these are measured are measured at amortised cost. This category also includes Cash and bank balances, Cash collateral
on securities borrowed and margin money & settlement assets, loan assets, other assets.

Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited 2020 Annual Report




Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

vi) Financial instruments (continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Finaricial assets that do not meet the criteria to be measured at amortised cost or FVOCI are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
For the purposes of the Company's financial statements, the FVTPL classification consist of the following:

- financial assets that are held for active trading (held for trading (HFT)). This classification includes all derivative financial assets,, except those that
are designated as hedging instruments in qualifying hedge relationships and are classified as FVTPL;

- financial assets in a business model whose objective is achieved by managing the financial assets on a falr value basis in order to realise gains
and losses as opposed to a business model in which the abjective is to collect contractual cash flows or

- financial assets that fail the SPPI test (FVTPL).

Equity financial assets are measured at FVTPL.

The Interest component of financial assets that are classified as HFT and FVTPL is recognised in interest income.

Reclassification of financial instruments

The Company reclassifies debt financial assets when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes. Financial assets that

are reclassified are subsequently measured based on the financial instrument's new measurement category.
The Company does not reclassify financial liabilities after Initial recognition.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabliities are subsequently measured at amortised cost, unless they are either HFT purposes.

All derivative financial liabliities and trading liabilities are classified as HFT, except those that are designated as hedging instruments in qualifying
hedge relationships and are classified as PVTPL,

The changes in fair value of financial liabilities that are classified as HFT are recognised as part of net trading income, The interest component of
financial liabilities that are classified as HFT is recognised In interest expense.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported on the statement of financial position, when there is a current legally

enforceable right to offset the amounts and either there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the financial asset and settle the financlal
liability simultansously

vii) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the Company holds for its own use or for rental to others and which are expected to be
used for more than one year.

Property, plant and equipment is stated al historical costiwhich includes directly attributable borrowing costs) less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for indicators of impairment (or possible reversal of previous
impairment losses} at each reporting date. Historical cost includes expenditure directly attributable 1o the acquisition of the asset. Property, plant
and equipment includes assets leased out under operating leases.

If an asset's canrying value is greater than its recoverable amount, the carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount,
Adjustment arising from such items and on disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

vii) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Right-of-use assels are measured at cost and comprises the amount that corresponds to the amount recognized for the lease liabiiity on initial
recognition togather with any lease payments made at or before the commencement date (less any lease incentives received), initial direct costs
and restoration-related costs.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset's ussful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Depreciation on assets is calculated on a straight-line basis to allocats the difference between cost and residual values over their estimated useful
lives, at the following rates:

|item Depreciation Depreciation Right of use asset Depreciation
method Rates Rates

Equipment Straight line 33 to 50% Property 3to B7

Furniture and fixtures Straight line 10 to 20%

Leasehold Straight line 10 to 20%

|improvements

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed annually and reassessed in light of commercial and technological
developrents.

Gain and loss on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with the asset’s camying amount and are recognised in other income as par of
other operating income and charges.

The depreciation charge relating to corporate building leases is presented as part of 'occupancy expenses’. The Company does not recognise a
right-of-use asset for short term or low value leases, instead the expense is recognised over the lease term as appropriate as part of 'operating
expenses’ in the income statement,

viii) Trading assets and liabilities

Trading assets (long positions) comprige of financial instruments such as debt and equity securities. Trading liabilities comprise obligations o
deliver assets (short positions) across the same trading categories and which the Company intend to actively trade.

Trading assets and kabilities are classified as HFT. The Company uses trade date accounting when recording regular way purchases and sales of
trading assets and liabilities. At the date a purchase transaction is entered into {trade date), the Company recognises the resulting financial asset
or liability and any subsequent unrealised profit or loss arising from revaluing that contract to fair value is recognised as part of net trading income
in the income statement, When the Company becomes party to a sale contract and the de-recognition criteria are met, it derecognises the trading
asset or liabliity and recognises a trade recelvable or trade payable from trade date until settlement date.

ix) Derivative instruments

Derivative financial instruments, which are not designated as hedging instruments, consisting of foreign exchange contracts and interest rate
swaps, are initially measured at falr value on the contract date, and are remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other non financial host contracts are treated as separate detivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value with unrealised gains or losses
reported in profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are recognised in profit or loss as they arise.

Derivatives are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held for trading.

The Company does not apply hedge accounting to derivatives. The Company applies trade date accounting to the recognition and derecogrition
of derivative financial instruments.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
ix) Derivative instruments (continued)

Hedge accounting

As part of its ongoing business, the Company is exposed to several financial risks, principally that of interest rate, foreign exchange rates and
commodity price risk (collectively referred to as the hedged risk or exposure). The Company has limited appetite for such risks and has policies
and practices in place to ensure that these risks are effectively managed. The Company mitigates these risks through the use of derivative
financial instruments and, in the case of foreign currency risk, foreign-denominated debt issued (collectively referred to as hedging instruments).

x) Interest in associates

Associates are those entities over which the Company has significant influence or joint but not absolute control and are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment in accordance with IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements,

The Company determines the dates of obtaining or losing significant influence or joint control of another entity based on an assessment of all
pertinent facts and circumstances that affect the abiiity to significantly influence or jointly control the financial and operating policies of that entity.
Facts and circumstances that have the most impact include the contractual armangements agreed with the counterparty, the manner in which
those arrangements are expected to operate in practice, and whether regulatory approval is required to complete, The acquisition/disposal date
does not necessarily occur when the transaction is closed or finalised under law.

xi) Loan assets

This category includes loans that are not held for trading purposes and typically includes the Company’s lending activities to its customers.

Loan assets are initially recognised at fair value on settlement date (adjusted for directly attributable transaction costs for loan assets subsequently
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI) and subsequently measured in accordance with the Cormpany's accounting policy for financlal instrurents
in note 2 ().

xii) Due to/ from body corporate related entities

Transactions between the Company, its parent entity and other related entities principally arise from the provision of lending arrangements and
acceptance of funds on deposit and intercompany services and transactions . These transactions are measured at amortised cost except for
lending arrangements that do not satisfy the SPPI criterion,

xiii) Impairment
Expected credit losses

The ECL requirements apply to financial assets measured at amortised cost or are classified as FVOCI, lease receivables, armnounts receivable from
contracts with customers, loan commitments, certain letters of credit and financial guarantee contracts,

The Company applies a three-stage approach (i) Stage | - 12 month ECL, (i) Stage Il - Lifetime ECL not credit impaired and (i) Stage Ill - Lifetime
ECL credit impaired) to measure the ECL based on changes in the financial asset’s underlying credit risk and includes forward-looking or macro-
economic information (FLI). Where ECL is modelled collectively for portfolios of exposures, it is modelled as the product of the probability of default
(PD), the loss given defaull (LGD} and the exposure at defaull (EAD). ECL was immaterial in current and previous year,

Presentation of loss allowances

The loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as loan assets, loan to related body corporate entities, associates,
debt financial investments and other asset measured at amortised cost — as a deduction to the gross carrying amount,

When the Company concludes that there is no reasonable expectation of recovering cash flows from the financial asset and all possible collateral
has been realised, the financial asset is written off, either partially or in full, against the related provision, Recoveries of loans previously written off
are recorded based on the cash received.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

xiii) Impairment (continued)

Impairment of interests in associates

The Company performs an assessment at each balance date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that its interests in associates
are impaired. The main indicators of impairment are significant changes in the market, economic or legal environment and a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below cost.

If there is an indication that an investment in an associate may be impaired, then the entire carrying amount of the investment in the associate is
tested for impairment by comparing the recoverable amount, being the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell, with its carrying
amount. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement for investments in associates are subsequently reversed through the income
statement if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount since the impaimment loss was recognised.

xiv) Margin money and settlement assets and liabilities

Margin money and settlernent assets and liabilities includes trade settlement balances, margin monies and balances with clearing houses, Margin
monies primarily represent deposits placed with clearing house in relation to futures trading and other derivatives transactions. The balance
includes both initial margin and variance margin which varies based on trading activities. Settlement balances represents outstanding trade timing
balances as on the reporting date due to the timing difference between trade date and settlement date. Balances are carried at amortised cost.

Xv) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Employee benefits

A liability for employee benefits is recognised by the Company that has the obligation to the employee. Generally, this is consistent with the legal
position of the parties to the employment contract.

Liabilities for unpaid salaries, salary related costs and provisions for annual leave are recorded in the statement of financial position at the salary
rates which are expected to be pald when the liability is settled,

Provisions for unpaid employee benefits are derecognised when the benefit is settled, or is transferred to another entity and the Company is legally
released from the obligation and do not retain a constructive obligation.

Others

Provisions are recognised when it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle a present legal or constructive
obligation that has arisen as a result of past events and for which a reliable estimate can be made.

Contingent liabilities, which generally include letters of credit, indemnities, performance-related contingencles and guarantees (other than financial
guarantees) are not recognised in the financial staternents but are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements unless they are considered
remate

xvi) Employee compensation

Employee compensation is recognised as an expense, unless the cost qualifies to be capitalised as an asset.

Performance based remuneration

Share based payments

The entity participates in its ultimate parent company, MGL's share based compensation plans, being the Macquarie Group Employee Retained
Equity Plan (MEREP). Information relating to these schemes ig set out in note 25 — Employes equity participation. The Company récognises a
prepaid asset at grant for these awards, since MGL Is relmbursed in advance. This amount is recognized as an expense over the respective
vasting periods. MGL recognises a corresponding increase in equity for the equity settled awards to employees.

The awards are measured at the grant date based on their fair value and using the number of equity instruments expected to vest.
Profit share remuneration

The Company recognises a liability and an expense for profit share remunsration to be paid in cash with reference to the performance pericd to
which the profit share relates
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Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Xvii) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether contract is or contains a lease. At inception or on reassessment of a contract that
contains a lease, the Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component unless an election is made to account for the
lease and non- lease, components as a single lease component.

Accounting where tho Company Is the lessee

The Company leases corporate buildings, commodity storage facilities; technology and other equipment for which contracts are typically entered
into for fixed periods and may include extension options. Leases are recognised as an ROU asset{as explained in Note 2(vii} Property, plant and
equipment) and a corresponding liability at the commencement date, baing the date, the leased asset is available for use by the Company.

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments at the commencement date, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease (or if that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate). Lease payments are allocated
betwesn principal and interest expense. Interest expense is, unless capitalised on a qualifying asset which is not measured at fair value,
recognised as part of ‘interest and similar expense’ in the income statement over the lease period on the remaining lease liability balance for each
period, Any variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease liabliity is also recognised in the income statement in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs.

Lease liabilities are remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in lease term, an assessment of an option
to purchase the underlying asset, an index or rate, or a change in the estimated amount payable under a residual value guarantee,

When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying value of the ROU asset, or, in the income statement,
where the carrying value of the ROU asset has been fully written down,

Presentation
The Company presents ROU assets in 'property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabiiities in ‘other liabilities' in the statement of financial position.

Prior to the adoption of IFRS 16, where the Company was the lessee in an operating lease arrangament, the total fived payments were charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. The difference between the curnuative expense recognised and cash
[paid was recorded on the balance sheet as either a payable or receivable as appropriale,

xviii) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash and bank balances and non-trading reverse repurchase agreements that have a contractual maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition and which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and are available to mest Company’s short term cash commitments, Cash and cash equivalents exclude margin money
balances, trading assets and other balances which are segregated from the Company’s own funds and thus restricted from uze,

xix) Ofisetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabliities are offset, and the net amount reported on the statement of financial position when there is a current legally
enforceable right to offset the amounts and either there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the financial asset and sstile the financial
liability simultaneously.

xx) Share capital

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are approved by the Company's shareholders,

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds,

xxi) Comparatives
Where necessary, comparative information has been restated to conform to changes in presentation in the current year,

Presentation changes

During the current year, the Company has reassessed its policy for cash and cash equivalents definition in cash flow staterment and had excluded
certain trading related balances not readily available for use as explained in note 22 - Notes to Statements of cash flows, Where necessary,
comparative inforration has been restated to conform to changes In presentation in the current year. In addition, for Covid-19 consideration refer
note 2 Coronavirus (COVID-19) impact.
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Figures in Rand 2020 2019

Note 3. (Loss)/profit for the financial year

Met interest (expense)fincome
Interast and similar income

Interest income on deposits 391,329,893 346,207,299
Interest income on collateral pledgad 142,774,670 186,849,684
Interest on intercompany loans 16,350,608 13,452,208
Total interest and similar income 550,455,171 546,509,186

Interest and similar expense

Interest on loans from financial institutions (69,735) {261,511)
Interest on intercompary loans (271,509,811) (28,892,161)
Interest expense on collateral received (289,882,422) {200,785,683)
Interest expanse on other loans (69,941,086) (41,010,411)
Interest on listed debt (200,147,653) (199,902,532)
Interest on lease liability (242,240) -
Total Interest and similar expense (831,792,847 {470,842,308)
MNet interest (expense)/income (281,337,776) 75,666,878
Net trading income
Net trading income 168,510,143 76,577,507
Total net trading income 168,510,143 76,577,507

Other operating income and charges

Credit impairment reversal/(charges)

Loan asset 525,008 131
Other assats 37,977 (65,170}
Impairment of investment in associates - M2t
Other income (168) (14,839)
Total other operating income and charges 562,817 (79,998}
Fee and commission income
Fee share from a related entity - 9,002,812
Fee and commission expense
Fee share from a related entity (9,748,886) [2.516,588)
Neat fee and commission (expense)/income (9,748,886) 5,486,224
Nat operating (expense)/income (122,013,702) 1587 650,611
Employment expenses
Salary, and related costs inchiding commissions, superannuation and
performance-related profit share (14,088,742) (28,428,689)
Share based payments (27,639) (188,560)
Provision for long service and annual leave (100,296) (268,029)
Total compensation expenses (14,216,677) (28,885,278)
Other employment expensss including on-costs, staff procuremsnt and staif training {198,244) {185,789)
Total employment expenses (14,414,921) {28,071,067)
Occupancy expenses
Operating leass rentals (80,223) (2,693,492)
Depreciation: furniture, fittings and leasehold improvements {note 12) (6,980,057) (5,828,547)
Other occcupancy income/(expensas) 285,291 (390,188)
Total occupancy expenses (6,774,989) {8.412,227)
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Figures in Rand 2020 2019

Note 3. (Loss)/profit for the financial year (continued)

Non-salary technology expenses

Information services (2,812,646) (1,581,738)
Depreciation: office egquipment (note 12) (37.271) (93.803)
Service provider and other non technology expenses (272,534) (189,386)
Total non-salary technology expenses (3,122,451) (1,864,927)
Other operating expenses

Management fees, group service charges and cost recoveries paid (54,996,605) (29,572,383}
Profegsional fees (1,715,005) (884,834)
Travel and entertainment expenses (1,022,812) (1,210,881}
Auditor’s remuneration (2,283,042) (1.214,851)
Advertising and promotional expenses (58,279) (55,272
Communication expenses (2,030,225) (4,366,127)
Cther expenses'' (13,349,813) (8,653,851)
Total other operating expenses (75,455,871) (45,858,179)
Total operating expenses (99,768,232) (85,306,400)
Operating (loss)/profit before income tax (221,781,834) 72,344,211

" Includes indirect tax expense 12,017,023 {2019: R7,885,014).

Note 4. Income tax (expense)/benefit

(i) Income tax (expense)/benofit
Profit from current financial year

- Deferred tax (expense)/banafit (64,063,6589) 27,094 826
Foreign Tax Cradit (FTC) written off (857,697) -
Under provision in prior financial years

- Defarred tax expanse (53,445) -

Total income tax {expense)/benefit (64,974,841) 27,004,826

Deferred tax expense included in income tax expense comprises:

(Decreasa)/increass in deferred tax assets (64,131,952) 26,846,848
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities 68,253 247,978
Foreign tax credt (FTC) write off (857,697) -
Prior year adjustment (63,445) -
Total (64,974,841) 27,094,828

{ii) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense/(benefit) to prima facie tax payable

Prima facie income tax benefit/{expense) on operating profit’ 62,098,942 (20,256,377)

Tax effect of amounts which are (not deductible)/non-assessable in calculating taxable income:
Effect of exempt income 34,128,606 1,443,806
Expanses not deductible for tax purposes 69,347 111,135
FTC written off (857,687) -
Under provision in prier financial years (53,445) -
Recognition of previously unrecognised assessed loss - 48,796,762
4 ] loss not recognised (160,360,584) -

Total income tax (expense)/benefit arising from current financial year (64,974,841) 27,094,826

' Prima tacie income fax (expense)/bsnelt on operating profit is calculated at the rate of 28 per cent (2019:28 par cent),
Mo provision has been made for 2020 tax as the Company has no taxable income, The estimated tax loss available for st of against future taxable
income is R572,716,409 (2019: R230,755,199),

Note 5. Cash and bank balances

Cash at bank 6,029,774 5,179,549

Total Cash and bank balances 6,929,774 5,179,549
The above amounts are expected lo be recoverad within 12 months of the reporting date by the Company.
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Figures in Rand 2020 2018

Note 6. Cash collateral on securities borrowed/lent
Cash collateral on securities borrowed and reverse repurchase agreemenis

Cash Collateral on seeurities borrowed and reverse repurchase agreements - 2,054,130,500
Total Cash collateral on securities borrowed and reverse repurchase agreements - 2,054,130,500

The above collateral incudes cash collateral pleciged as at 31 March 2020 amounting to Nil (2019: R1,248m) with a related liability of Ml (2019:
R733.3m ).

The above amounts are expecied to be recovered within 12 months of the reporting date by the Company.

Assats are pledged as collateral under repurchase agreements with other banks and for security deposits relating to local futures, options and
stock exchange memberships, Collateral |s placed on call, earns interest at commercial collateral rates and relates to the borrowing of equity
securities,

The related hability represents the fair value of securities that have been borrowsd for which cash collateral has been pledged.

Cash collateral on securities lent and repurchase agreements

Cash collateral on securities lent and repurchase agresments 58,000,026  6,430,607,498

Total Cash collateral on securities lent and repurchase agreements 58,000,026  6,430,607,498

The above coliateral includas cash coliateral received is R58m (2019: RB47.8m) with a related assets of RE5.3m (2019: R609.2m).

The above amounts are expected to be settied within 12 months of the reporting date by the Company.

Liabilities are pledged as collateral under repurchase agreements with other banks and for security deposits relating to local fulures, options and
stock exchange memberships. Coliateral is placed on call and relates to the borrowing of eguity securities.

The related asset represerts the fair value of sscurities that have been lent for which cash collateral has been received,

Note 7. Trading assets

Equity Securities
Listed 44,480,863 4,349,163,954
Total trading assets 44,490,863 4,349,163,954

Thie above amounts are expected to be recoversd within 12 months of the reporting date by the Company.
Trading assets represents listed equity securities which are held for trading and are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

Note 8. Margin money and settlement assets

Margin placed with clearing house 69,771,637 9,212,168
Security settlements 116,445,883 319,685,453
Other 19,265,000 -
Total margin money and settlement assats 205,482,520 328,897 621

Security settlsments are generally receivable within two working days of the ralevant trade date.
The above amounts are expected to be recovered within 12 months of the reporting date by the Company.

Note 9. Financial investments

Money Market instruments and funds 587,857,364 2,433,582,088
Term deposit managed on a fair value basis " 710,500,274  1,105,448,040
Total financial investments 1,298,357,638 3,539,030,126

The majority of the above amounts are expected o be recovered within 12 months of the reporing date by the Company.

W |ncludes R710,800,274 (2019: RB649,418,736) deposits which are expected to be recovered after 12 months of the reporting date by the
Company,

Note 10. Loan assets

Due from related entities " 148,475,000

Total loan assets - 148,475,000

The subordinated loan to Mazi Macquarie Securities (RF) Propristary Ltd, repaid during the year.
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Figures in Rand 2020 2019
Note 11. Other assets
Due from related entities 1,633,662 27,129,607
Debtors and prepayments 275,816 408,715
Other trade assets 3,663,195 38,887,337
Other 294,940 737,204
Total other assets 5,867,613 67,160,863
The majority of the above amounts are expected 1o be recovered within 12 months of the reporting date by the Company.
Note 12. Property, plant and equipment
2020 2019
Accumulated Accumulated -
Cost deprociation Canying valua Cost depresiation Carrying value

Asssts for own usa
Fumiture and fittings 221,107 (216,668) 4,439 221,107 (213,862) 7.245
Leasshold improvements 26,160,250 (24,386,675) 1,773,575 26,160,250 (19,065,247) 7,094,303
Equipment 968,187 (886,521) 81,666 874,982 (854,416) 20,566
Total assets for own use 27,349,544 (25,489,864) 1,850,680 27,256,339 (20,134,225 7,122,114
Right-ot-use assets
Froperty " 2,209,635 (1,657,225) 552,410 -
Total right-of-use assets 2,209,635 (1,657,225) 552,410 - - =
Total property, plant and equipment 29,559,179 (27,147,089) 2,412,090 27,256,339 (20,134,225) 7,122,114
The majority of the above amounts are expected to be recovered after 12 months of the reporting date by the Company.
" Represents operating leases recogrised in statement of financial position following the adeption of IFRS 16 as described In note 2{)
Reconciliation of the movement in the Company's property, plant and equipment -2020:

Op g Disp Addition Depreciation Total
Right-of-use assets'"’ - - 2,209,635 (1,657,225} 552,410
Furniture and fittings 7,245 - - (2,808) 4,439
Leasehold improvermnents 7,084,303 - g (5,320,728} 1,773,575
Equipment 20,566 (18,078) 116,448 (37,270} 81,666
Balance at 31 March 2020 7,122,114 {18,078) 2,326,083 (7,018,029) 2,412,080
" Represents operating leases recognised in statement of financial pesition following the adoption of IFRS 16 as daseribed in note 2()
Reconciliation of the movement in the Company's property, plant and equipment -2019:

Opening balance Disposals Addition Depreciation Total
Furniture and fittings 15,062 - - (7.817) 7,245
Leasehold improverments 12,415,034 - - (5.320,731) 7,004,303
Equipment 91,126 - 23,243 (93,803) 20,566
Balance at 31 March 2019 12,521,222 - 23,243 (5,422,351) 7,122,114

A register containing the information required by Reguiation 25(3) of the Companies Regulations, 2011 is available for inspection al the registered

office of the Company.

L.easshold improvarments relate to improverments mads to the office bulding.
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Figures in Rand 2020 2018

MNote 13. Interests in associate
The following table lists all of the associates in the Company

% %
Name of Company Ownership O hip Carrying t Carrying amount
Interest 2020  Interest 2019 2020 2019
PSIC Finance 3 (BF) (Pty) Ltd"”’ 30% 30% 300 300
Total 300 300

All the above companies are registered in South Africa.

PSIC Finance 3 (RF) (Pty) Ltd conducts the business of issuing cumulative redeemable preference shares and applying the proceeds to subscribe
for cumulative redeemable preference shares.

"Mhis company is currently dormant.

The net asset value and profit of the associates are insignificant to the Company's financial staterments and thus disclosure of those figures is not
included,

Note 14. Deferred tax assets

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Tax losses 126,231,988 64,611,453
Valuation allowance on tax lossas (126,231,988} -
Provisions 3,826,440 3,254,219
Prepayments (98,433) {115,509)
Total deferred tax assets 3,728,007 67,750,073

The movements in the deferred tax assets during the financial year were as follows:

Prepayments Provisions Tax losses Total

2020
Balance at the begnning of the financial year (115,486) 3,254,105 64,611,453 67,750,073
Prior year adjustmant 1,492 (87,088) (134,690) (221,188)
Debited/(credited) to profit or loss 15,561 660,323 (64,476,763} (63,800,879)
Balance at the end of the financial year (98,433) 3,826,440 - 3,728,007
Prepayments Provisions Tax losses Total

2018
Balance at the beginning of the financial year (196,732) 3,319,723 37,350,170 40,473,161
[Credited)/ dsbited to proiit or loss 81,246 {65,617) 27,261,283 27,276,912
Balancs at the end of the financial year (116,486) 3,254,105 64,611,453 67,750,073

Recoegnition of deferred tax asset
Recoverability of the deferred tax asset is based on managament forecasts which are regularly updated and assessed. Deferred tax assets are
only recogrised to the extent that future profits are available against which the unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utiised,

Management performs an assessment of the probability of future taxable profit by performing an analysis over a 5 year period of reverue and
expenses. To determine the probabilty that taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utlised, the Company has
reviewed its forecasts of secured work for the foreseeable future and compared that to its total tax losses, To the extent that forecasts do riot
support the deferred tax asset being utilised within 5 years, the deferred tax asset is not racognised.

Detaled forecasts have been prepared and approved at group level showing the Company returning to profitability in the short to medium term,
Thess forecasts are based on approved financial budgets and the five year strategic plan, which has been approved by the Group and board of
directors, 1o determine the recoverability of the deferred tax asset balance.

The following criteria is used in assessing the probability that taxable profit will be avallable against which the unused tax losses can be utilised:

- Whether the entity has sufficient taxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation authonity and the same taxable entity, which wil
rasult In taxable amounts against which the unused tax losses can utilised;

- Whether it iz probable that the entity will have taxable profit before the unused tax losses expire;

- Whather the unused tax losses result from identifiable causes which are unlikely to recur; and

- Whether there are fax planning opportunities avalable that will create taxable profit in the period in which the unused tax losses or unused tax
credit can be utilised.

During the year, the deferred tax assets previously recogrised on tax losses have been reversed as a result of losses in the current year.
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Figures in Rand 2020 20189

Note 15. Trading liabilities

Equity securities
Listed 1,038,750,361 2,045,877 464
Total trading liabilities 1,039,750,361 2,045,877,464

The above amourts are expected to be sattled within 12 months of the reparting date by the Compary,
Trading liabilities represent the quoted equity securities that the Company intends to buy back in the short term. These securities are measured
al fair value through profit and loss and are held for trading.

Note 16. Margin money and settlement liabilities

Security Ssttlements
Due to other related entities 5,128,986 7,960,100
Other 103,371,035 242,050,094
Total margin money and settlement lability 108,500,021 340,010,208

Sacurity settlements are generally payable within two working days of the relevant trade date,

Mote 17. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Debt issued at far value " 1,898,148,703  53,604,818,507
Total Financial liabllities at fair value through profit or loss 1,998,148,703  3,604,818,607

The majority of the above armounts are expected to be payable within 12 months of the reporting date by the Company.
Mncludes A1,207,099,628 short term funding obtained during the year from Macquarie Internationale Investments Limited @86.79% interest,

Fincludes R711,217,808 (2010 RE49,604,809) deposite which are expected to be payable after 12 months of the reporting date by the

Company,
|Loan Notional  |Subordinated Bearing interest at Date repayable
|R&o0m |Yes 11,63% August 2023

Note 18. Other liabilities

Due to related entities 99,792,898 3,599,413
Profit share accrual 51,494 4,879,381
Accrued charges 6,846,344 5,629,834
Other trade liabilities 5,019,447 32,133,704
Lease liabilities' 833,801 -
Others 6,804,062 3,125,599
Total other liabilities 119,348,046 49,367,951

Tha majorty of the above amounts are expecled to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date by the Company.
"l March 2020 lease liabilities includes tha impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 April 2019, As permitted by IFRS 16, the Company has not
restated the comparative financial reporting period. Refer note 2{) for the impact on initial adoption of IFRS 16.

Note 19. Provisions

Provision for smployee entitlements 567,285 634,235
Total provisions 567,285 634,235
Tha above amount is expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date by the Company.
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Figures in Rand 2020 2019
Note 20. Share capital
2020 2019
Number of Numiber of
shares shares
MNumber of shares authorised:
328,000 Ordinary shares of R1 each 328,000 328,000
190,000,000 Class "B" Ordinary shares 190,000,000 190,000,000
526,315,789 no par value Class "C" ordinary shares 526,315,789 526,315,789
50,140 no par value class "A" redeemable cumulative preference shares 50,140 50,140
100 no par value class “B* redeemable cumulative preference shares 100 100
12,587 ne par value class "C' redesmable cumulative preferance shares 12,587 12,587
75 ne par value class "D redeemable cumulative preference shares 75 78
100 no par value class "E” redeemable cumulative preference shares 100 100
310,100,000 no par value unclassified shares under s36(1)c) of the Act 310,100,000 310,100,000
337,098 no par value unclassified shares under 536(1Hd) of the Act 337,088 3a7.098
Total 1,027,143,888 1,027,143,889
Number of shares issued:
327,100 Ordinary shares of R1 each 327,100 327,100
180,000,000 Class "B" Ordinary shares 180,000,000 180,000,000
526,315,789 no par value Class 'C" ordinary shares 526,315,789 526,315,789
Total 716,642,889 716,642,889
2020 2019
Issued in Rand
327,100 Ordinary shares of R1 each 327,100 327,100
180,000,000 Class “B" Ordinary shares 190,000,000 190,000,000
526,315,789 no par value Class "C" ordinary shares 100,000,000 100,000,000
Total 290,327,100 290,327,100
All issued shares are fully paid.
MNote 21. Accumulated losses
Balance at the beginning of the financial year (107,588,922) (207,027,959}
Change on initial application of IFRS 16, net of tax (note 2{)} {244,488) -
Restated balance as at 1 April 2019 {107,833,410) (207,027,959)
(Loss)Profit attributable to ordinary equity holder of Macquarie Securities South Africa
Limited {286,756,775) 99,439,037
Balance at the end of the financial year {394,590,185) (107,588,922)
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Note 22. Notes to the statement of cash flows

In order to more closely align with the Gompany's cash and liguid assets portfolio, the Company has reviewed the balances included in the
determination of cash and cash equivalents. The review concluded that for the year ended 31 March 2019 margin money balances held with
clearing houses have been excluded from cash and cash equivalent as these balances are held for trading purposes and are not avalable to
mest the Company's short-terrm cash commitrments. (Refer note 2{xii) Cash and Cash Equivalerits)

As a result of these changes, cash flow from operating activity and cash and cash equivalents decreased by R2.2m for the year ended 31 March
2018, This revision had no impact on the Company's statements of financial position, income statemants or reserves,

Figures in Rand 2020 209
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year are reflected in the Statement of asssts and

liabilities ag follows
Cash and bank balances (note 5) 6,929,774 5,179,549
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 6,929,774 5,179,549

Note 23. Related party information

Parent

The immediate parert entity is Macguarie EMG Holdings Pty Limited, incorporated in Australia, The ultimate parent entity is Macquarie Group
Limited (MGL), incorparated in Australia.

Transactions betwsen the Company and other related entities principally arise from fee and commission income and expense, Net trading
income, funding transactions and the provision of management and administration services.

Certain gains and losses relating to tracing assets which are charged by related entities are recognised in net trading income,

Balances outstanding with the parent and other related entities are disclosed in notes 10,11,16,17 and 18 to the financial statements.

Transactions with related parties
During the financial year, the following transactions were made with the parent entity.

2020
Inter group Interest Fea and

charges / Trading income/ commission Balance March
Name Relation Expenes _activities expense] income 2020
Macquarie Bank Limited Other 632,530 % ) 460,152 {1,427)
Macquarie Bank Limited (London Branch) Other (7,767) (455,010,521) TrATT 15,676 5,128,289)
Macquarie Emg Heldings Pty Limited Parent - 26,620,064 18 4 (33,409,473)
Macaquarie Financial Holdings Pty Limited  Other 23,086 (1,070)  (4,068,300) 2 (93,931,993
Maecquane Global Services (Usa) Lic Cther 1,188,957 - - 662,447 #
Macquane Group Services (Singapora}
Pte. Limited Other 405,873 - - 6,060,584 -
Macquarie Group Services Australia Pty
Ltd Other 31.115,728 = - 250,410 1
Macquarie Group Services Australia Pty
Ltd Uk Branch) Other 23,200,908 = - 2,054,109 =
Macquarie Holdings South Africa
Proprietary Limited Other {507,535} - - - (1,310,511}
Macguatia Intermationale Investments
Lirnited Other & - 271,961,034 - 1,207,911,047)
Macguarie Services (Hong Kong) Limited  Other 981,658 - - 6,637 (1,737)
Mazi Macquarie Securities (Rf) Propristary
Limited Othear (2,328,104) - (12,186,501 - 318,303
Macquaris Global Services Private
Limited (Ob/Branch){CNBIG) Other 583,913 - - - (422,790)
Macquarie Global Services Private
Limited {Ob/Branch){CNSIl) Other 1,610,168 - — - 1,873,848}
Macquarie Africa Proprietary Limited Othar - - - - (824,843)
Other Group Entities with balances
<R200,000 Other 394,022 20,722 1,399 229,871 133,469
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Mote 23. Related party information (continued)

Figures in Rand
2019
Inter group Interest Fee and

charges / Trading income/ commission Balance March
Name Relation Expenes Activities {expense) income 2019
Deltal Finance Trust Other 4,110,669 (28,842,260) - -
Macauarie Africa (Pty) Lid, Other 1,188,176 - - ” (825,8902)
Macquarie Bank Limited Other 499,234 203,016,046 (46,008) 5,429,727 (112,717,833)
Macquarie Gormmeodities Trading SA Other - - 4 3,647,468 s
Macquarie Corporate Finance Limited
Niederlassung Deutschland Other 1,030,536 - - - -
Macquaris Emg Holdings Pty Limited Parent * (5,528,979) (519) = 18,789,507)
Meacquarie Financial Holdings Pty Ltd Other 15,898  (1,708,570) 2,783 4 23,585,951
Macquarie Global Senvices (USA) LLC Other 164,522 - * o 2
Macquarie Group Services (Singapors)
Pte. Ltd. Other 1,677,561 - - - -
Macquarie Group Services Australia Pty
Ltd Other 3,668,126 - - - -
Macquarie Internationale Investments
Ltd, Other - 186,164 - &
Macaquarie Sarvices (Hong Kong) Ltd, Other 165,823 - - -
Maz Macquarie Securities (RF)
Proprietary Lid, Other (1,831,588} - 13,452,203 - 151,840,696
Macquarie Holdings South Africa
Proprietary Limited Other - - - - (1,438,099)
Macquaris Global Senvices Private Lid,  Other - - - - 246,122
Cther Group Entities with balances
<R200,000 Other 141,481 - {40,729} 25,617 {360,844)

Note 24. Key Management Personnel disclosure

Key Management Personnel

The following persons were Voting Directors of the Company and those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controling
the activities of the Company (Key Management Personnel — KMP) during the financial years ended 31 March 2020 and 81 March 2019, unless
otherwise indicated:

Name of Director Appointed on Resigned on
Duncan MacRobert (Non Executive) 28 March 2014 -

Graham Crawford 10 Novermnber 2009 -

Nikelal Mavrodinoy 29 Septamber 2015 -

Peter Gordon (Non Executive) 28 March 2014 -

Timothy Leclercg (Non Executive) 28 March 2014 -

William Philips 9 August 2017 6 July 2018

The Key Management Personnel (KMP) are also the Directors of the Company.
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Note 24. Key Management Personnel disclosure (continued)

Directors' emoluments

Figures in Rand 2020 208
Total remuneration 6,256,269 6,195,728

No Directors of the Company are Directors of the ultimate parent antity,

The KMP did not receive any other benefits or considaration in connection with the management of the Company. All cther benefits that were
received by KMP (principally performance related remuneration and options for MGL equity) were solaly relatad to other services performed with
respect to their smployment within the Macquarie Group.

Note 25. Employee equity participation

Macquarie Group Employee Retained Equity Plan

The entity participatas in its ullimate parent company's, Macquarie Group Limited [MGL), share based compensation plans, being the Macquarie
Group Employee Retained Equity Plan (the MEREP). In terms of this plan, awards are granted by MGL to qualifying employees for delivery of
MGL shares.

Award Types under the MEREP

Restricted Share Units (RSUs)

An RSU is a beneficial interest in an MGL ordinary share held on behalf of a MEREP participant by the plan trustes (Trustee), The participant is
entitled to receive dwidends on the share and diract the Trustes how to exercise voting rights of the share. The participant also has the right to
request the release of the share from the MEREP Trust, subject to the vesting and forfeiture provisions of the MEREP,

Number of RSUs Awards

2020 2019
RSUs on issue at the beginning of the financial year 570 1,681
Granted during the financial year 122 -
Foreited during the financial year - (48)
Vested RSUs withdrawn or sold from the MEREP during the financial year (427) 610)
Transfers to related body corporate entities » (353)
RSUs on issue at the end of the financial year 265 570
RSUs vested and not withdrawn from the MEREP at the end of the financial year * =

The weighted averags fair value of the RS awards granted during the Financial year was R1,383 (2019: Ni),

Farticipation in the MEREP is currently provided {o the following Eligible Emiployees:

~ Staff other than Executive Directors with retained profit share above a threshold amount (Retained Profit Share Awards) and staff who wera
promoted to Associate Director, Division Director or Executive Director, who received a fixed Australian dollar value allocation of MEREP awards
(Promotion Awards);

= Mew MFHPL Group staff who commence at Associate Director, Division Director or Executive Director level and are awarded a fixed Australian
dollar value, depending on level (New Hire Awards).

Vesting periods are as follows:

Award typa

Retained Profit Share Awards and Below Executive Director 1/3rd in the 2nd, 3rd and 4th year following the year|

Prometion Awards of grant'”

New Hire Awards All Director-level staff 1/3rd on each first day of a staff trading window on
or after the 2nd, 3rd and 4th anniversaries of the
date of allocation

" \asting will occur during an eligitle staff trading window,
In kmited cases, the application form for awards may set out a different vesting peried, in which case that period will be the vesting period for the
award, For example, staff in jurisdictions outside Australia may have a different vesting period dus to local regulatory requirements,

For Retained Profit Share awards representing 2018 retention, the allocation price was the weighted average price of the shares acquired for the
2019 purchase period, which was 13 May 2019 to 24 June 2019, That price was calculated to be R1,337 (2018 retention; R1,165).
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Note 25. Employee equity participation (continued)

Assumptions used to determine fair value of MEREP awards
RSLV's are measured at their grant dates based on their fair value. This amount is recognised as an expense everly over the respective vesting
pariods.

RSUs have been granted in the current financial year in respect of 2019, The accounting fair value of each of thess grants is estimated using
MGL's share price on the date of grant.

The entity annually reviews its estimates of the number of awards (including those delivered through MEREP) that are expected to vest. It

recognizes the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the employment expenses in the income statement. For the financial year
ended 31 March 2020, compensation expense relating o the MEREP totalled R37,132.63 {2019: R19,202.51).

Note 26. Contingent liabilities and commitments
The Company has no contingent liabilities which are individually material or a category of commitments or contingent liabilities which are material,

Note 27. Derivative financial instruments

Objectives of holding derivative financial instruments
The Company uses derivatives to hedge operations and for asset and liability management.

Dervative assets includes exchange traded equity futures denvatives of R59.2m (2019 R52.8m) and OTC denvatves R1,687.5m (2019
R2,230.5m)

Derivative liability includes exchange traded equity futures derivatives of Rd4.3m (2018; R53.2m) and OTC derivatives R49.6m (2019: R143.5m)

The types af financial instruments which the Company trades and uses for hedging purposes are detatled below:

Futures: Futwes contracts provide the holder with the obligation to buy a specified financial instrument at a fixed price and fixed date In the
future. Contracts may be closed early via cash settlement. Futures contracts are exchange traded.

Forwards: Forward contracts, which resemble futures contracts, are an agreement between two parties that a financial instrument will be traded
at a fixed price and fixed date in the future,

Swaps: Swap transactions provide for two parties to swap a series of cash flows in relation to an underlying principal amount, usually to
exchange a fixed interest rate for a floating interest rate. Cross-currency swaps provide a tool for two parties 1o manage nsk arising from
moverments in exchange rates.

Options: Option contracts provide the holder the right to buy or sell financial Instruments at a fixed price over an agreed period or on a fixed date,
The contract does not oblige the holder to buy or sell, however the writer must perform if the holder exercises the nghts pertaining to the option,
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Note 28. Financial risk management

Risk Management Group (RMG)

The risks which the Macquarie Group is exposed to are managed on a globally conselidated basis for both Macquarie Bank Limited ("MBL") and Macquarie
Group Limited ("MGL") as a whole, including all subsidiaries, in all locations. Macquarie's internal approach to risk ensures that risks in subsidiaries are subject
to the same rigour and risk acceptance decisions (eg. trading within risk limits and daily monitoring by RMG (i.e. not differentiating where the risk is taken within
Macquarie).

Rigk is an integral part of the Macquarie Group's businesses. The material risks faced by the Company include aggregate, asset, conduct, credit, environmental
and social {including climate change), equity, financial crime, legal, liguidity, market, operational (including cyber and information security), regulatory and
compliance, reputational, strategic, tax and work health and safety risks

The primary responsibility for risk management lies with the business. An important part of the role of all business managers throughout Macguarie is to ensure
they manage risk appropriately.

During the current reporting period, the Macquarie Group's credit risk management framework remained consistent with that of the prior period,

AMG is independent of other areas of the Macquarie Group, RMG approval is required for all material risk acceptance decisions, RMG reviews and assesses
risks and sets limits, Where appropriate, thesa limits are approved by the Executive Committee and the Board. The Head of RMG, as Macquarie's CRO, is a
member of the Executive Committee of MGL and MBL and reports directly to the CEC with a secondary reporting line to the Board Risk Committee,

The Company is approved to trade a range of products based on a new product approval process, AMG sets appropriate risk limits which are monitorad and
updated reqularly, Any proposed trading that would be outside of these nisk limits require special deal approval by the Deal Review Committes,

28.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a counterparty failing to complete its contractual obligations when they fall due or changes in the creditworthiness of the counterparty.
The conseguent loss is either the amount of the loan or financial cbligation not repaid, the change in the value of a non-traded debt instrurment, or the loss
incurred in replicating a trading contract with a new counterparty.

Credit rigk within the Company is managed on a group basis by the RMG at MGL

Ratings and reviews

For internals balances, credit rating of each affiiate entity has been defined based on rating grades assigned intemally to these counterparties for the pricing of
intemal funding arrangements on an arm's length basis. In case the affiliate is not rated, the same has been considered as below investment grade.

For external balances, Macguarie ratings broadly correspond to Standard & Poor's credil ratings as follows:

Credit Rating Intemnal Rating External Equivalent
Investment grade MG te MQ8 AAA to BEB-
Non-Investment grade |MGE to MQ16 BB+toC

Default | Default

Credit quality of financial assets
The table below discloses as at 31 March 2020, by credit rating grades and ECL impairment stage, the gross carrying amount of assets measured at amortised
cost of the Company subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, The credit quality is based on the counterparty's credit rating using the Company's
credit rating system and excludes the benefit of collateral and credit enhancements.

Figures in Rand
2020 Meither past due nor impaired

Stage 1" Stage 20" Stage 3" Total
Investment grade
Loan assets £ W - =
Margin money and settlement assets - = L =
Other assets” . x . W

Total investment grade 2 i 3 <
Below investment grade

Cash and bank balances 6,920,774 - - 6,929,774
Collateral on securities borrowed and reverse repuichase agreements = s o u
Margin money and settlement assets 205,482,520 - - 205,482,520
Other asssts” 5,718,626 - - 5,718,826
Total below investment grade 218,131,120 - - 218,131,120
Financial assets by ECL stage™

Loan assets - - - 8
Cash and bank balances 6,928,774 - - 6,920,774
Collaterai on securities borrowed and reverse repurchase agreements ¥ & " =
Margin money and settlement assets 205,482,520 - - 205,482,520
Other aseets 5,718,826 - - 5,718,826
Total financial assets by ECL stage™ 218,131,120 - - 218,131,120

" For related disclosura, refer to note 2{xii} Impairmant - Expected credit losses.
® Excludes other non-financial assats of R203,734 which are included in note 11 - Other assets,
¥ Fer the purposes of this disclosurs gross carrying amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost represents the armortised cost before ECL allowance.
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28.1 Credit risk {continued)

Credit quality of financial assets

The table below discloses as at 31 March 2019, by credil rating grades and ECL impairment stage, the gross carrying amount of assets measured at amortised
cost of the Company subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, The credit quality is based on the counterparty’s eredit rating using the Company's
cradit rating system and excludes the benefit of collateral and credit enhancements,

Figures in Rand

Credit quality - 2019 Meither past due nor impaired

stage 1" Stage 2" Stage 3" Total
Investment grade
Loan assets 149,475,000 - - 149,475,000
Other assets” 30,178,256 - - 30,178,256
Total investment grade 179,653,256 - - 179,653,256
Below investment grade
Cash and bank balances 5,179,549 - - 5,179,549
Collateral on securities borowed and reverse repurchase agreements 2,054,130,500 - - 2,054,130,500
Margin money and settlement assets 328,897,621 - - 328,897,621
Other assets” 36,640,190 - - 36,640,190
Total below investment grade 2,424,847 ,860 - - 2,424,847,860
Financial assets by ECL stage”
Loan assets 149,475,000 - - 149,475,000
Cash and bank balances 5,179,548 - - 5,179,549
Collateral on securities borrowed and reverse repurchase agresments 2,054,130,500 - - 2,054,130,500
Margin money and settlement assats 328,897,621 - - 328,897,621
Other assets’ 66,818,446 - - 66,818,446
Total financial assets by ECL stage™ 2,604,501,116 - - 2,604,501,116

"l For related disclosure, refer to note 2{xii) Impairment - Expected credit losses.
¥ Excludes other non-financial assets of H533,56/ which are included in note 11 - Other assets,
B Fer the purposes of this disclosure gross carnying amourt of financial assets measured at amertised cost reprasents the amortised cost before ECL allowance,

Credit risk concentration

The table below details the concentration of credit risk by significant geographical locations and counterparty type of the Company's financial assets subject to
impairment requirements of IFRS 9. The geographical location is determined by the domicile and the classification is based on the industry type of the
counterparty.

Figures in Rand

Financial Others Total
2020 institutions
EMEA
Cash and bank balances 6,929,774 - 6,829,774
Collateral on securities borrowed and reverse
repurchase agreements - o -
Margin money and settlement assets 108,080,588 96,401,931 205,482,520
Loan assets - - W
Other assets "' 2,680,211 1,642,308 4,322,607
Total EMEA © 118,690,574 08,044,327 216,734,901
Asia Pacific
Other asssts " - 1,384,247 1,384,247
Total Asia Pacific - 1,384,247 1,384,247
Australia
Other assets " 11,972 - 11,972
Total Australia 11,972 - 11,972
Total 118,702,546 89,428,574 218,131,120
Total gross credit sk 218,131,120

" Excludes othsr non-financial asssts of R303.734 which are included in note 11 — Other assets.

% For the purposes of this disclosure grass carrying amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost represents the amortised cost befors ECL

¥ EMEA region includes credit risk exposures in South Africa,

' Due from related body corporates have been presented as Financial Institutions and Other based on APRA's Standard Institutional Sector Classification of
Australia (SISCA) classification which is on similar lines with financial sector classification defined by the local regulatory authorities where appliabls; Previous
year has been reclassified to conform to the current year prasentation.

The table below details the concentration by significant geographical locations and counterparty typs of the Company financial assets which are not subject to
impairment requirements of IFRS 9 since they're measured at fair value through profit and loss.

Figures in Rand

Financial Others Total
2020 institutions
EMEA
Trading asssts 44,444 056 46,807 44,490,863
Dearivative assets 178,226,187 1,568,546,772  1,746,772,959
Financial Investments 1,208,357,638 - 1,298,357,638
Total EMEA{m] 1,521,027,881 1,568,593,579 3,089,621,460
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Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Note 28. Financial risk management (continued)

28.1 Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk concentration
The table below details the concentration of credit risk of the Company financial assets by significant geographical locations and counterparty type. The
maximum credit exposure is to sach counterparty and does not take into considération collateral or other credit enhancemants {refer to section on collateral
and credit enhancements). The geographical location is determined by the domicile and the classification is determined by the industry type of the
counterparty.

Figures in Rand

Financial Others Total
2019 institutions
EMEA
Cash and bank balances 5,179,549 - 5,179,549
Collateral on securities borrowed and reverse
repurchase agreements 1,789,064,741 265,065,759  2,054,130,500
Margin money and settlement assets 285,309,956 43,587,665 328,897,621
Loan assets - 149,475,000 149,475,000
Other assets "’ 26,237,363 15,689,120 41,926,483
Total EMEA™ 2,105,791,609 473,817,544 2,579,609,153
Asia Pacific
Other assets " - 1,021,141 1,021,141
Total Asia Pacific - 1,021,141 1,021,141
Australia
Other assets " 23,685,351 185,471 23,870,822
Total Australia 23,685,351 185,471 23,870,822
Total 2,129,476,960 475,024,156  2,604,501,116
Total gross credit risk>™ 2,604,501,116

" Excludes other non-financial assets of R533,567 which are includsd in note 11 - Other assats.

# For the purposes of this disclosure grass carrying amount of financial assets measured at amortised cost represents the amortised cost befors ECL

™ EMEA ragion includes credit risk exposures in South Africa,

" Due from related body corporates have been presented as Financial Institutions and Other based on APRA’s Standard Institutional Sector Classification of
Australia (SISCA) classilication which is on similar lines with financial sector classification defined by the local regulatory authorities where appliable. Previous
year has been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation,

The table below details the concentration by significant geographical locations and counterparty type of the Company financial assets which are not subject to
impairment requirements of IFRS 9 since they're measured at fair value through profit and loss,

Financial Others Total
_321_9 institutions
EMEA
Trading assets 518,060,851 3,831,103,103 4,349,163,954
Derivative assets B2,006,116  2,200,791,475  2,282,797,5%1
Financial Investments 3,282,748,404 256,281,722  3,539,030,126
Total EMEA T i 3,882,815,371  6,288,176,300 10,170,991,671

Cash and cash equivalents
No collateral is held in relation to cash and cash equivalents. Thase exposures are monitored dally per counterparty against infemally approved risk limits,

Loan assets
Macquaris lends to clients for investment and financing purposas, Where Macquarie lends fer investment, Macquarie holds the investment as collateral,

Derivative financial instruments

Dlerivatives may be traded on an exchange (exchange traded) or they may be privately negotialed contracts, which are usually raferred to as Over The Counter
(OTC) derivatives.

Exchange traded contracls have reduced cradit risk as the counterparty is a clearing house that is responsible for risk managing their members to ensure the
clsaring house has adequate resources to fulfil its obligations when they becorme dus. Members are required to provide inilial margins in ascordance with the
exchange rulss in the form of cash or securities, and provide daily variation margins in cash to cover changes in market values of the underlying derivatives.

The Company has exchangs traded derivatives with positive replacement values (and for which counterparties would have had to place margin) as at 31 March
2020 of RE8.2m (2016: R52.3m),

For OTC derivative contracts, the Company often has master netting agresments (usually ISDA Master Agreements) with certain counterparties to manags the
cradit risk. The cradit risk associated with positive replacement value contracts is reducsd by master netting arrangsments that in an event of default requires
balances with a particular counterparty covered by the agreement (eg derivatives and cash marging) to be terminatad and setiled on a net basis. The Company
also often exscutes a Credit Support Annex in conjunction with a master netfing agresment, which facilitates the transfer of margin between parties during the
term of arrangements, to mitigate counterparty risk arising from changes in markst values of the derivatives.

At 31 March 2020, no OTG derivative asssts subject to master netting agreerment were in issue.
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Macquarie Securities South Africa Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Note 28. Financial risk management (continued)
28.1 Credit risk {continued)

Collateral on securities borrowed

The Company enters into stock borrowing and reverse repurchase transactions with counterparties which require lodgement of non-cash collateral.
Securities borrowed requires the deposit of cash collateral at amounts equal to or greater than the market value of the securities borrowed, Revarse repurchase
agreements are collateralised financing arrangaments with the markat value of the securities provided as collateral generally in excess of the principal amount.

Margin money and settlement assets

This includes initial margin and settled trades which are traded on an exchange. They have reduced credit risk as the counterparty is a clearing house
responsible for setflement of trades.

Financial Investments at fair value through profit and loss

This classification mainly includes debt securities held by Group Treasury primarily in the nature of negotiable certificates of deposits (NCD), monay market
funds and other debt securities for liquidity management purposes.

Other Assets
This includss intercompany and other trade balances.

28.2 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk of an entity encountering difficulty in meeting obligations with financial labilities.
The Company’s liquidity management process, as carred out within the Group and monitored by a separate team in Group Treasury, includes:

- Day to day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be met. The Group maintains an active presence in global
money markets;

- Menitaring balance sheet hquidity ratios against internal and regulatory requirerments; and

- Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.

Funding approach

Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by a separate team in the Group to maintain a wide diversification by currency, geography, provider, product and
term.

Sources of liquidity include short term liquid assets, raising short term debt, uncommitted money market lines and cross border borrgwing from Macquarie
Group entities,

Contractual undiscounted cash flows:

The following table summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities as at 31 March based on contractual undiscounted repayment
obligations. Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were giver immediately.

Figures in Rand

On demand Less than 3 3to 12 months 1to 5 years Total
2020 months
Collateral on securities lent and repurchass agreements " 58,000,026 * . 58,000,026
Trading liabilities = 1,089,750,361 - - 1,039,750,361
Derivative liabilities - 70,765,722 23,224,685 - 93,000,407
Margin money and settlement liability - 108,500,021 - - 108,500,021
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - 1,286,930,895 - 711,217,808 1,898,148,703
Other liabilities " = 105,437,696 208,450 - 105,646,146
Total undiscounted cash flows - 2,669,384,721 23,433,135 711,217,808 3,404,035,664
"Exeludes items that are not finansial instruments and non-contractual accruals and provisions,

Figures in Rand
On demand Lessthan 3 310 12 months 1 to 5 years Total

2019 manths
Collateral on securities lent and repurchase agresments - 6,430,607,488 - - 6,430,607 ,498
Trading liabilities - 2,045,877 464 - - 2,045,877 ,464
Derivative liabilities - 41,936,413 15,176,782 139,540,480 186,653,675
Margin money and settlement liability - 340,010,203 x . 340,010,203
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - 2,305080,318 650,162,200 649,604,890 3,604,818,607
Other liabilities" - 35,733,117 - - 35,733,117
Total undiscounted cash flows - 11,189,215,013 665,340,072 789,145,379 12,653,700,464

"Excludes items that are not financial instruments and non-contractual accruals and provisions.

The balance shest is managed on a maturity basis whers liquidity is managed to ansure thars are sufficient assets to meet liabilities as and when they become due. In the
short term (0 - 3months), thers s sufficient liquidity in cash and bank balance, collateral securities, trading balances and financial investments to mest current obligations,

The rernainder of the assets are sufficient to meet the liatdities in the 3 to 12 menth time period.
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Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Note 28. Financial risk management (continued)
28.3 Market risk

Non Traded Market Risk
The Company has exposure to non-traded market risks ansing from transactions entered inte during its normal course of business. These rigks include:
- interest rate; changes in the level, shape and volatility of yield curves, and/or client behaviour given these changes;

- foreign exchange: changes in the spot exchange rates.

Market risk of the Company is managed on a globally consolidated basis for Macquarie Group as a whole, including all subsidiaries, in all locations.
Macquarie's internal approach to risk {i.e. not differentiating where the risk is taken within Macguarie) ensures that risks in subsidiaries are subject to the same
rigour and risk acceptance decisions.

Interest rate risk is monitored on a portiolio basis rather than at an asset class level and it is therefore appropriate to disclose the risk in the way it is managed.
Interest rate risk

The Company alsc has exposure to non-traded interest rate risk generated by interest bearing assets and liabilities, The table below indicates the Company's
exposure to movements in interest rates as at 31 March,

2020 2019

Movament in Sensitivity of Sensitivity of profit

basis points profit after tax after tax

South Africa Rand +50 191,810 2,561,285
South Africa Rand -50 {191,810) (2,561,285)

Foreign currency risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk arising from transactions entered into in its normal course of business. Movements in foreign currency
exchange rates will result in gain or loss in the income statement due to the revaluation of certain balances.

Foreign currency exposures arise from related party cost recoveries, No hedges have been entered to cover this risk,

Management monitors the exposure and minimises the risk through regular settiement of inter group balances. All foreign exchange exposures are reviewed by
management on a menthly basis.

The table below indicates the foreign currency markets to which the Company had significant exposure at 31 March on its intercompany assats,

Movement of Movement of
+10% -10%

2020 2019 2020 2019
Sensitivity of Sensitivity of Sensitivity of Sensitivity of profit
profit before tax  profit before tax  profit before tax before 1ax
Australian dollar (3,320,895) 144,150 3,320,895 (144,150)
Euro (143,935) (2,721) 143,935 2,721
Great British pound (8,789,817) (965,037) 8,789,817 955,037
Hong Kong doliar (1,482,572) (516,730) 1,482,572 516,730
Swiss Frane (9,487) (7,445} 9,487 7,445
Canadian dollar (16,514) {90) 16,514 80
Singapare dollar (261,279) (337,313) 261,279 337,313
Philippine peso (268 (5,640) 268 5,640
United States dollar (4,378,398) (7,748,158) 4,378,398 7,748,158
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Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Note 28. Financial risk management (continued)
28.3 Market risk (continued)

Traded Market Risk

Equity price risk

Equities: changes in the price and volatiity of individual equities, equity derivatives, equity baskets and equity indices, including the risks arising from equity
underwriting activity, All equity positions that are held by the Company at year end are listed on the JSE's Main Exchangs;

Interest rates: changes in the level, shape and volatility of yield curves, the basis between different interest rate securities and derivatives and credit margins,

The table below indicates the equity markets to which the Company had significant exposure at year end on its trading investment portfolio:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Movementin  Sensitivity of Sensitivity of Movement in Sensitivity of Sensitivity of profit
equity price  profit before  profit after tax equity price  profit before tax after tax
tax
Geographic ragion % Rand Rand % Rand Rand
Listed and non listed
EMEA +10% 14,627,632 10,531,895 +10% 2,480,688 1,782,576
Listed and non listed
EMEA -10% (12,601,639) {9,073,180) -10% (2,489,688) (1,792,576)

EMEA region includes equity price risk exposuras in South Africa.

28.4 Capital risk

The Macquarie Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Macquarie Group’s ability to continue as a going concem in order to provide
returns for shareholder and benefits for other stakeholdars and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital,

The capital structure of the Macqguarie Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings {excluding derivative financial liabilities) disclosed in notes 17,
cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note § and equity as disclosed in the staterment of financial position.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Macquarie Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid 1o sharsholder, retum capital to shareholder,
issus new shares or sell assets to reduce debt,

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are menitored by the Group's management, employing techniques based on the guidslines of the JSE, for
supenvisory purposas. The required information is filed with the JSE on a monthly basis.

JSE Capital requirements include a Fixed Expenditure Requirement. It is required to hold at all times adjusted liquid capital which is adequate to fund its fixed
expenditure for a period of 13 weeks. This is calculated in accordance with the JSE Directive DG for the following year at 25% of total fixed cost amounts.

The Company has complied with all extemally imposed capital requirements during the period.

There have been no changes to the Macquarie Group's strategy for capital maintenance or externally imposed capital requirements from the previous year,

The table below reflects the Company's capital: Figures in Band

2020 2019
Share capital 280,327,100 280,327,100
Accumulated loss (394,590,185) (107,588,9822)
Subordinated debt 600,000,000 600,000,000

495,736,915 782,738,178
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Note 29. Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

Fair value reflects the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measuremant date. Quoted prices or rates are used 1o determine fair value where an active market exists. If the market for a financial instrument is not active,
fair values are estimated using present value or other valuation technigues, using inputs based on market cenditions prevailing on the measurement date.

The values derived from applying these techniques are affected by the choice of valuation medel used and the underlying assumptions mads regarding inputs
such as timing and amounts of future cash flows, discount rates, credit risk, volatility and correlation,

Financial instruments measured at fair value are categorised in their entirety, in accordance with the levels of the fair value hierarchy as cutlined below:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - inputs other than guoted prices included within Level 1 that are observabla for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices);

Level 3 — inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on cbservable market data (unobservabls inputs).

The appropriate level for an instrumant is datermined on the basis of the lowest lavel input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

IFRS 13 Fair Valus Measurement requires use of the price within the bid-offer spread that is most representative of fair value. Valuation systems will typically
generate mid - market prices. The bid-offer adjustment reflects the extent to which bid-offer costs would be incurred if substantially all of the residual exposure
to market risks were closed on a portiolio basis using avallable hedging instruments.

The fair values calculated for financial instruments which are carried in the statement of financial position at amortised cost are for disclosure purpose only:

The following methods and assumptions applied to derive these fair values can require significant judgement by management and therefore may not necessarily
be comparable to other financial institutions nor may it be the price at which the asset is sold or a liability repurchased in a market-based transaction:

- the fair values of liquid assets and other instruments maturing within thres months are approximate to their carrying amounts, This assumption is applied to
liguid asssts and the short-term portion of all other financial assets and financial liabilitiss;

- the fair value of fixed rate loans and debt investments carried at amortised cost is estimated by reference to current market rates offered on similar loans and
the credit worthiness of the borrower(to be used in case of fixed rate debt);

- the fair value of balances dus from/to related entities are approximate to their carrying amount as the balances are generally short term in nature.

The following methods and significant assumptions have been applied in determining the fair values of financial Instruments which are measurad at fair valus:

- Trading assets and liabilities, derivative financial instruments and other transactions undertaken for trading purposes are measured at fair value by reference to
guoted prices in active market where available (for example listed securities). If quated prices in active market are not available, then fair values are estimated on
the basis of pricing modals cr other recognised valuation technigues;

- Financial investment classified as FVTPL are measured at fair value by reference to quoted prices in active markst when available (for example listed
securities). If quoted prices in active market are not available, then fair valuss are estimated on the basis of pricing models or other recognised valuation
techniques that maximise the use of quoted prices and observable market inputs;

- fair values of fixed rate loans classified as FVTPL or FVOCI and issued debt classified as DVTPL are estimated by reference to current market rates offered on
simitar loans and issusd debt;

- for financial assets carried at fair value, in order to measure counterparty credit risk, a Credit Valuation Adjustment (CVA)} s incorporated into the valuation,
The CVA is calculated at a counterparty level taking into account all exposures te that counterparty; and

- for financial liabilities carried at fair value, in order to measure the Company's own credit risk, a Debit Valuation Adjustment (DVA} is incarporated inta the
valuations.

Whire valuation technigues are used to determing fair values, they are validated and perodically reviewed by qualified personnel independent of the area that
created them, All modsls are certified before they are used, and models are callbrated periodically to test that outputs reflect prices from observable current
market fransactions in the same instrument or other available observable markst data. To the extent possible, modsls use only observabls market data (for
example for OTC derivatives), however management is required to make assumptions for certain inputs that are not supported by prices from observable
current market transactions in the same instrument, such as volatility and correlation.

The tair values calculated for linancial instruments which are canied on the balance sheet at amortised cost are for disclosure purposes only. The methods and

assumptions applied to derive these fair values, as described earlier, can require significant judgement by management and therefore may not necessarily be
compared to other financial institutions,
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Note 29. Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

The following table summarises the levels of the fair value hisrarchy for financial instruments measured at fair value:

Figures in Rand

2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets

Trading asssts 44,490,863 - - 44,490,863
Derivative assets 59,217,649 1,687,555,310 - 1,746,772,959
Financial Investments - 1,298,357,638 - 1,298,357,638
Total assets 103,708,512  2,985,912,948 - 3,089,621,460
Liabilities

Trading liabilities 1,039,750,361 - - 1,039,750,361
Derivative liabilities 44,345,880 49,644,517 - 93,990,407
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - 1,988,148,703 - 1,988,148,703
Total liabilities 1,084,096,251  2,047,793,220 - 3,131,889.471

The following tables summarise the levels of the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at fair value of the Company at 31 March 2019;

Figures in Rand
20318 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Trading assels 4,349,163,954 - - 4,349,163,954
Derivative assets 52,369,835  2,230,427,756 = 2,282,797 59
Financial Investments - 3,539,030,126 - 3,539,030,128
Total assets 4,401,533,789  5,769.,457,882 - 10,170,891,671
Liabilities
Trading liabifities 2,045,877 464 - 2,045,877,464
Derivative liabilities 53,255,826 129,287,931 14,109,918 196,653,675
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or logs - 3,604,818,507 - 3,604,818,507
Total liabilities 2,080,133,280 3,734,106,438 14,108,818 5,847,340 646

The Level 1 Derivative Financial instruments relate to listed futures,

In 2018 derivative liability in level 3 sensitive to change in variable relating to the future dividend and the volatility,

Future dividends are estimated using data from multiple independent market data providers, with growth basad on historic growth rates.

During the year there were no transfers of securities from Level 1 to Level 2 of the fair value hisrarchy. The following tables shows a reconciliation from
baginning balances to snding balancss for fair value measuremants in Level 3 of the fair value hisrarchy.

2020
Derivative Financial Financial liabilities at fair value
liability Investment through profit or loss
Opening Balances 14,109,918 * -
Purchases " T =
Disposals (14,109,918) - -
209
Darivative liability Financial Financial liabilities at tair value
Investment through profit or lose
Opening Balances - 94,520,700 114,233,606
Purchases / (Disposals) 14,109,918 (94,520,700) -
Total losses in profit or loss < 0 (114,283,606}
14,100,918 - i
Maovement of Movement of
Figures in Rand +10% -10%
2020 2019 2020 2019
Sensitivity of Level 3 assets Sensitivity of Sensitivity of Sensitivity of Sensitivity of profit
profit before tax  profit before tax  profit before tax before tax
Derivative liability - 1,410,992 " (1,410,992)
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Note 30. Segment reporting
The entity operates as a part of Commeodity Global Market (CGM) business unit which is the only primary trading segment. The trading segment includes the
revenue generating activities with respect to derivatives trading; providing financial solutions for corporate clients and stock lending and borrowing activities
which support the trading business.

In order to allocate resources to the segment and to asses its performance the management considered the above mentioned segments as one operating
segment for assessment of performance of business.

Segment has been classified based on the grouping that management uses for key decision making, Intemal financial reporting Is segregated in this manner for
group reporting purposes. The Company is monitored as part of the global Macquarie Securities Group. Decision makers review financial information monthly at
thie segment lsvel. The executive directors as described in the Report on Corporate Governance acts as the chisf operating decision maker,

Due to the nature of the trading activitiss, the Chief Operating Decision Maker reviews the net interest to make decisions on allocating resources.

Note 31. Lease commitments

Operating lease commitments
The future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Figures in Rand
Lease of premises 2020 2019
- within one year 833,801 4,188,133
- later than 1 year but less than 5 years - 1,430,547

Note 32. Events after the reporting date

Subsequent to the end of reporting peried, on 11 June 2020, the Company issued 1,315,789,474 class C no par value ordinary shares at a price of R18 cenls
each to its parent Macquarle EMG Haoldings Pty Limited, This resulted in positive net asset position subsequent to balance sheet date, In addition, for Covid-18
consideration refer nole 2 Coronavirus (CCVID-18) impact,

Note 33. Authorisation of financial statements
These financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors of Macqguarie Securities South Africa Limited on
25 June 2020

Note 34. Categories of financial instruments

2020 Figures in Rand
Assets Notes  Financial assets at FVTPL Financial asset  Financial liabilities at FVTPL  Financial liability Total
at amortised at amortised
cost cost
Cash and bank
balances 5 - 6,020,774 - - 6,820,774
Cash collateral on
sacurities borrowed
and reverse rapurchase 6 m " & & i
Trading asssts 7 44,490,863 - - - 44,490,863
Derivative assets 1,746,772,959 - - - 1,746,772,959
Margin money and
settlemant assats B - 205,482,520 - - 205,482,520
Financial Investments 9 1,298,357,638 - - - 1,298,357,638
Loan assets 10 - - - - ~
Other assets'” 1 - 5,718,826 - - 5,718,826
3,089,621,460 218,131,120 - - B,307,752,580
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For the financial year ended 31 March 2020 (continued)

Note 34. Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Liabilities

Cash collateral on
securities lent and
repurchase agresments
Trading liahilities
Derivative liabilities
Margin money and
settlement liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or
loss

Other liabilities!"

2018

Assets

Cash and bank
balances

Cash collateral on
securities borrowed
and reverse repurchase
Trading asssts
Derivative assets
Margin money and
settlement assets
Financial Investments
Loan assets

Other assets'”

Liabiiities

Cash collateral on
securifies lent and
repurchase agresments
Trading liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Margin money and
seftlernent liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or
loss

Other liabifities"!

Notes

17
18

Notes

10
11

Notes

17
18

Figures in Rand
Financial asssts at FVTPL Financial asset Financial liabilities at FVTPL Financial liability Total
at amortised at amortised
cost cost
5 . - 58,000,026 58,000,026
- - 1,039,750,361 - 1,039,750,361
- - 93,980,407 - 93,990,407
- - - 108,500,021 108,500,021
- - 1,998,148,703 - 1,888,148,703
- - - 105,646,146 105,646,146
o - - 3,131,880,471 272,146,193 3,404,035,664
"Excludes itarns that are non financial assets and liabilities and non-contractual aceruals and provisions.
Figures in Rand
Financial asset
at amortised Financial liability
Financial assets at FVTPL cost Financial liabilities at FVTPL at amoriised cost Total
- 5,179,549 - - 5,179,549
2,054,130,500 - - 2,054,130,500
4,349,163,854 - 5 - 4,349,163,954
2,282,797,581 - - 2,282,797,591
328,897,621 - - 328,897,621
3,539,030,126 - - 3,539,030,126
- 148,475,000 - - 149,475,000
- 66,818,446 - - 66,818,446
10,170,891,671 2,604,501,116 = - 12,775,492,787
Figures in Rand
Financial assets at FVTPL Financial asset Financial liabilities at FVTPL  Financial liability Total
at amortised at amortised cost
cost
- B,430,607,488 6,430,607 498
- - 2,045,877 464 = 2,045,877,464
L 196,653,675 - 196,653,675
- - 340,010,203 340,010,203
- - 3,604,818,507 - 3,604,818,507
- - - 35,733,117 35,738,117
= - - 5,847,349,646 6,806,350,818 12,653,700,464

"Excludes items that are non financial assets and liabilities and non-contractual accruals and provisions,
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